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ABOUT THIS REPORT
AIST is using elements of the Integrated
Reporting Framework to move towards a
more open and transparent report that
informs stakeholders of what we have
achieved and the value AIST has created
over the last 12 month reporting period, as
well as the future value we intend to create.
This annual report covers our activities from
1st January 2016 to 31st December 2016.
The most recent report prior is the AIST
Annual Report 2015. We report annually
prior to our Annual General Meeting that is
held in March each year.
Any questions regarding the report or
its contents can be directed to Media
and Content Officer Sarah Goodwin at
sgoodwin@aist.asn.au

WHY INTEGRATED
REPORTING IS
IMPORTANT TO AIST
Integrated Reporting (IR) is one way
in which an organisation can share
their development story and financial
performance at the end of the year.
Integrated Reports are corporate reports
prepared under the International Integrated
Reporting Framework and typically provide
stakeholders, both internal and external,
with an excellent understanding of how
that organisation creates value over time.
AIST believes Integrated Reporting can
provide readers with valuable insight
into an organisation’s strategy and value
creation, which in turn influences the
sustainability of the organisation.
We believe that how an organisation
positions itself to ensure its sustainability
is incredibly important so as the industry
body we’re leading by example by adhering
to the IR framework.
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In 2016, AIST – along with
support from the International
Integrated Reporting Council
– hosted quarterly meetings of
the International Pension Fund
Network. The Network – made
up of profit-to-member super
funds and industry bodies –
was set up by AIST in 2014
to provide participants with
a space to discuss super fund
reporting. Throughout the year,
members have discussed the
positive impacts that Integrated
Reporting and Corporate
reporting has had on their fund
members.
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Methodology
THE MATERIALITY AND VALUE CREATION MODEL
METHODOLOGY WE APPLIED
The International IR Framework requires a
strong emphasis on materiality to define
the content of the report. To define
the content of AIST’s 2016 report, we
undertook a materiality assessment based
on AccountAbility’s five-part materiality test
that comprise the following reviews:
—— Policy Drivers: Reviewed AIST corporate
strategies, stated commitments and
policies related to sustainability and
value creation in order to understand
the core issues driving decision making
in the organisation and which issues are
being prioritised and managed.
—— Industry Norms/Peers: Assessed peers
(membership focused organisations
within the superannuation, finance,
governance or education sectors) to
gain a broad understanding of the
issues and drivers that are significant to
our industry and similar member based
organisations. A review of the public
sustainability disclosure of six selected
peers was undertaken.
—— Societal Norms: Reviewed media
coverage related to AIST and the
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superannuation sector to determine
what issues of relevance are being
discussed in the media or are being
debated in the public realm. An
industry scan was also undertaken as
part of this test.
—— Financial Impacts/Risk: Reviewed AIST’s
risk register and risk assessments to
identify the issues with the potential to
impact in a short-term financial sense.
Any regulatory requirements with the
potential to incur a financial penalty for
non-compliance were also reviewed.
—— Stakeholder Concerns: In order
to capture the issues that AIST
stakeholders care about and what
information they need to make
informed judgments about us, we also
undertook a program of stakeholder
engagement. Interviews with seven
stakeholders comprising AIST Board
members and senior leaders from AIST
member organisations.
Other relevant documents to help
understand those issues of importance to
stakeholders were also reviewed. These
included member research, research

reports, event and training evaluation
documentation and other relevant reports.
The findings of the materiality assessment
enabled the key issues to be converted into
two categories to assess the significance
of the potential impact on AIST’s ability
to deliver on its strategy and potential
impact or influence on stakeholders. This
ranking approach also enabled the issues
to be plotted on a materiality matrix to
reflect significance of the issue across these
two categories. The material issues were
further categorised to reflect whether it
presented a material risk or material value
driver to AIST or a material risk to the
superannuation industry more broadly.
A workshop was held with our Executive
team to validate the material issues, as
well as explore AIST’s value chain and
understand where the issues contributed
to the creation of value for members. This
discussion enabled the development of a
value creation model for AIST.

Methodology
A summary of the high ranking issues and risks is below.
Category

Issue/Risk

Value driver
for AIST

Material issue
for the industry

Business Strategy

Alignment of vision, mission and fundamental
goals

X

High

Membership and
Partnerships

Value for members

X

High

Business Strategy

Understanding of member needs

X

High

Political Landscape

Mandatory change to board composition

Membership and
Partnerships

AIST membership numbers

Membership and
Partnerships

Understanding of stakeholders

High

Reputation & Relevance

Competition from peers

High

Political Landscape

Excessive change to super system rules

X

High

Political Landscape

Reduced market share for profit-to-member
super funds

X

High

Reputation & Relevance

Quality of AIST service

Reputation & Relevance

Strong advocacy

X

High

Business Strategy

Strong governance oversight & transparency

X

High

Societal Issues

Adequate super balances

X

High

Societal Issues

Insurance product design

X

High

Business Strategy

Awareness of legislative or market changes

X

High

Membership and
Partnerships

Member trust in AIST

X

High

Political Landscape

Differentiation of profit-to-member super funds

X
X

Ranking

High
High

High

X

High

This model has provided a strong framework for the organisation to understand how and where it creates value for its members that has
since been used to inform business planning and strategy, as well as the content of this report.
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About AIST
Who we are?
The Australian Institute of Superannuation
Trustees (AIST) is a national not-for-profit
organisation whose membership consists of
the trustee directors and staff of industry,
corporate and public-sector funds.
As the principal advocate and peak
representative body for the $700 billion
profit-to-member superannuation sector,
AIST plays a key role in policy development
and is a leading provider of research.
AIST provides professional training and
support for trustees and fund staff to help
them meet the challenges of managing
superannuation funds and advancing the
interests of their fund members. Each
year, AIST hosts the Conference of Major
Superannuation Funds (CMSF), in addition
to numerous other industry conferences
and events.

2016 Vision
A better retirement future for all
Australians.

2016 Mission
AIST will advance the Representative
Trustee System by building skills, knowledge
and capabilities and being the champion
of strong governance and sustainability of
the system.

2016 fundamental
goals

for a better retirement
▪▪ Advocate
outcome
the skills, knowledge and
▪▪ Enhance
capabilities of the superannuation

▪▪
▪▪

industry
Champion excellence in representative
governance
Build a sustainable organisation with a
culture that fosters initiative

Visit page 16
to discover our
new 2017 vision,
mission and
goals.
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A message from the AIST CEO
and President

Tom Garcia

David Smith

CEO

PRESIDENT

2016 was another busy year of AIST
advocacy, policy debate and member
consultation on the myriad of issues
affecting profit-to-member funds as well as
the wider super system.

discussions with the regulators over what
we see as inconsistent industry disclosure
requirements that will leave many
consumers in the dark. 2016 also saw AIST
work closely with the industry and other
stakeholders on better ways to deliver
superannuation to Indigenous Australians;
launch the Operational Due Diligence
Guidance to help deliver cost efficiencies
for member funds and was the driving force
behind the second AIST/Women in Super
Women’s Super Summit, which explored
new ways to help reduce the gender gap in
retirement savings.

From calling for improved retirement
outcomes for low income earners, through
to defending the representative trustee
system against the Government’s push
to mandate independence on the boards
of our member funds, AIST engaged and
consulted widely with key stakeholders to
drive good policy and help shape member
outcomes.
In every discussion we had and behind
every policy decision we made, our focus
was firmly on serving members’ best
interests. For AIST, this means serving the
interests of our member funds so that
they, in turn, are better able to deliver the
best possible retirement outcome for their
members.
This focus drove AIST to commission the
Fraser Review on board independence;
to develop a leading practice Governance
Code (to be launched in 2017); to raise
awareness about the role of default
funds in protecting consumers; to push
for an adequacy measure as part of the
Government’s proposed objective of
superannuation; and to take a lead role in
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STRATEGIC FOCUS
A focus on members’ best interests also
framed our thinking and subsequent
development of AIST’s 2017-2019 strategic
plan, which was completed this year.
Our new strategy recognises that raising
awareness of the fundamental differences
between profit-to-member funds and those
funds that are set up to deliver profits to
shareholders is one of AIST’s key roles. We
are committed to spreading the message
that profit-to-member funds are not only
different from the rest, but they produce
better member outcomes.
If we as a sector lose profit-to-member
ethos, this differentiation ceases to exist.

There is no point fighting the policy battles,
if all super funds end up looking alike and
operating in the same way.
A key strategic goal for AIST over the next
18 months is to reinforce awareness of
what it really means to be a profit-tomember fund both within our member
funds and among the wider community.
As of 1 January 2017, we will drop the
term not-for-profit in favour of the profitto-member terminology used by the
majority of our member funds. All of our
professional development and our events
will be developed through a profit-tomember lens.

THE IMPORTANCE OF THE
COLLECTIVE
Recognising our sector’s proud heritage
and our past achievements through
collective action, AIST will also put
even greater emphasis on providing
educational and networking forums that
foster collaboration, innovation and open
dialogue across our profit-to-member
collective. This includes the launch of an
important new history book – Workers’
Capital – which focuses on the role of
industry funds and the battle for universal
superannuation; expanding membership of
the already strong 1,500 plus Young Super

Network and working with the industry to
deliver the 2018 Super Grads Program, now
in its 12th year. These sorts of collective
initiates are unique to our sector and
another reason why we stand strong and
apart.

THE YEAR AHEAD
2017 is shaping up to be another busy
year for AIST and a critical time for
superannuation. Early in the year, AIST
will begin member consultations on our
governance code that will be launched in
March at CMSF. The first few months of
the year will also be critical in terms of
stepping up our advocacy on default fund
selection, with the Productivity Commission
set to release its draft report on alternative
default models in late March.
The move to Single Touch Payroll – a
new ATO-developed payroll system that
could alter the way members select
their super funds – could also have
significant ramifications for our sector. Our
consultations with the Australian Tax Office
on this new technology will intensify during
2017.
AIST is also very aware that the recent
Federal budget changes, as well as
the impact of the ongoing low return
environment, has fuelled uncertainty.
Another priority for us in 2017 will be to
work together with our funds to reinforce
the message of long-term stability and
value in superannuation.

COMMUNICATING BACK
TO MEMBERS
Last year, AIST took the first steps towards
producing an annual report that meets
the Integrated Reporting Framework.
Our 2016 report continues this journey
of explaining how AIST creates value for
you, our members. As part of this process,
AIST this year conducted a membership
survey to inform our future activities
and priorities, discover what you want
to hear more about, and help develop

the aforementioned strategic plan (you
can read more about the new strategic
plan on page 16). We thank our members
who participated in these surveys. We
also greatly appreciate the support we
receive from all our members who attend
our events, participate in our training and
provide invaluable policy feedback through
our communities of interest and various
working groups and committees.
We would also like to thank the AIST board
and AIST staff for their enthusiasm and
commitment and look forward to another
productive year ahead. We hope that you
find the information enclosed useful and
welcome any feedback.

David Smith
President

Tom Garcia
Chief Executive Officer

SEARCH FOR A
NEW CEO
In mid-December 2016, AIST
CEO Tom Garcia announced
his resignation to take up
a new appointment with
AustralianSuper.
Tom will take up the role
of Head of Product for
AustralianSuper, to lead the
fund’s product innovation
agenda, in mid-March 2017.
AIST president, David Smith,
paid tribute to Mr Garcia’s
leadership role at AIST and his
significant contribution to public
policy debate and the ongoing
success of the profit-to-member
super sector.
“Tom has been a passionate
advocate for profit-to-member
funds and their members
through a period of significant
policy and implementation
challenges, as well as
technological disruption,” Mr
Smith said.
“During Tom’s four year tenure,
AIST has thrived as an active
and highly respected industry
association with impact on
super and retirement income
policy, trustee and fund staff
education and professional
industry standards.”
The AIST Board is in the process
of searching for a new CEO and
members will be informed of
any developments.

AIST Annual Report 2016
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Organisational Chart
AIST employs 37 staff, all of whom are based at 215 Spring Street, Melbourne, with the exception of one staff member who works out
of Sydney.

AIST BOARD

DAVID LOUISE DU GRAEME
SMITH
PRE-ALBA ARNOTT
(PRESIDENT) (DEPUTY
PRESIDENT)

DEBORAH CATHERINE NAOMI
BLAKEY
BOLGER EDWARDS

ANGELA
EMSLIE
(RESIGNED)

GEOFF
LAKE

GERARD MICHAEL STEPHEN
NOONAN O’CONNOR PRATT
(RESIGNED)

MARK
PULI

CRAIG
PEATE

CATE
WOOD
(RESIGNED)

CEO

Finance, Risk & Audit Committee
Remuneration Committee

Marketing &
Strategy

People &
Culture

TOM
GARCIA

Business &
Operations Services

Education

Governance &
Stewardship

Media &
Communications

Policy &
Research

Finance &
Analytics

Membership
Events
Information Technology

Member committees
—— Education Committee
—— Policy & Governance Committee

More information
on our people
can be found on
page 50.
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How we create value
This section of the report outlines how AIST
uses the six capitals to create value.
Following analysis of AIST's value creation
model, it was determined that AIST mainly
draws upon inputs and creates outputs
from four of the six capitals:
—— Financial capital: The pool of funds
that is available to an organisation for
use in the production of goods or the
provision of services.
—— Intellectual capital: Organisational,
knowledge-based intangibles, including
intellectual property or “organisational
capital” such as tacit knowledge,
systems, procedures and protocols.

—— Human capital: People’s competencies,
capabilities and experience, and their
motivations to innovate, including their
alignment with, and support for, an
organisation’s governance framework,
risk management approach, and ethical
values.
—— Social and relationship capital: The
institutions and the relationships within
and between communities, groups
of stakeholders and other networks,
and the ability to share information to
enhance individual and collective wellbeing. Social and relationship capital
includes shared norms, and common
values and behaviours, as well as key

HUMAN

Information from
regulators, research, media,
members

SOCIAL &
RELATIONSHIPS
Conferences, events,
networking, members,
unions, media, government

Education of members

Acting in
members’ best
interests

INTELLECTUAL

REPRESENTATION
Influence in decision making

Training materials, research,
toolkits, professional
development, governance
tools

GOVERNANCE TOOLS
& KNOWLEDGE
Best-practice guidance &
implementation
PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
High professional standards,
service & knowledge

SOCIAL &
RELATIONSHIPS
influence and
representation,
strengthening networks and
connection with members

FINANCIAL

FINANCIAL

Membership fees and
sponsorship, partner
revenue, service revenue

employee wages and
benefits, direct and indirect
supply chain investment

INPUTS
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As demonstrated below, decisions made by
AIST member funds are based on members’
best interests – in turn, this influences all of
AIST’s activities. Communication between
AIST members and AIST is two-way, with
AIST providing a range of services to ensure
our funds can provide a better retirement
outcome for all Australians.

HUMAN

AIST people, speakers,
trainers, researchers,
contractors, partners

INTELLECTUAL

stakeholder relationships, and the
trust and willingness to engage that an
organisation has developed and strives
to build and protect with external
stakeholders.

BUSINESS MODEL

AIST Annual Report 2016

OUTPUTS

Supporting AIST
members to
provide superior
member services
and deliver
on business
strategy

Better
retirement
outcomes for
all Australians

OUTCOMES

How we create value
Value creation table
AIST 2016 Fundamental Goals

Value creation for AIST

Value creation for members

Advocate for a better
retirement outcome

——
——
——
——
——

Enhances thought leadership
Keeps us relevant
Enhances AIST reputation
Builds our ability to influence
Supports and informs other parts of the
business
—— Gives us the opportunity to talk to members
and bring them together
—— Drives relevant education content
—— Creates an opportunity to educate and
communication

—— Creates a collective member voice
—— Influences decision making and change
—— Can prevent negative policy outcomes and
negative outcomes for super fund members
—— Leads to better outcomes for their members
—— Provides resources they may not have in
house
—— Allows funds to focus on other things
—— Provides support in the delivery of
retirement outcomes of fund members
—— Influences government and policy to support
outcomes
—— Creates a cost effective pooled resource and
single profit-to-member voice
—— Provides access to Government/regulations
to influence regulation

Enhance skills, knowledge
and capabilities of the
superannuation industry

—— Shares our knowledge
—— Positions us as a leader in superannuation
education
—— Builds internal expertise
—— Boosts visibility of AIST and provides an
opportunity for contact with members
—— Provides face to face interactions with
members
—— Generates revenue (sponsorship/
registrations)

—— Leads to better outcomes for super fund
members
—— Builds staff skills and knowledge resulting in
better outcomes
—— Assists funds in meeting regulatory/
compliance requirements
—— Contributes to risk management
—— Provides expertise the fund may not have
—— Enhances services to members which
encourages member retention
—— Builds trust in fund and representatives
—— Supports greater skills/knowledge for their
members

Champion excellence in
representative governance

—— Strengthens relationship between unions and
employer groups
—— Enhances AIST reputation and point of
difference
—— Preserves and enhances equal rep model
—— Builds credibility and integrity
—— Allows us to strive for excellence
—— Keeps us relevant to members
—— Encourages members look to us on best
practice

—— Results in a best practice governance model
—— Creates better outcomes for fund members
—— Reminds super fund members that they have
representation on the boards of their fund
—— Decreases chances of fund failure
—— Lifts integrity of whole industry
—— Provides a marketing advantage to reinforce
benefit of profit-to-member funds
—— Builds trust from members – they hear and
see the system is good and sustainable

Build a sustainable organisation
with a culture that fosters
initiative

——
——
——
——
——

—— Lowers cost of AIST membership for super
funds
—— Provides access to highly skilled professionals
and good customer service
—— Provides an organisation they can count on
—— Helps the industry improve themselves

Boosts staff retention
Attracts strong talent
Keeps us innovative
Provides us with ability to evolve
Keeps us relevant

AIST Annual Report 2016
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Our 2016 members
AIST continued to provide a three tiered
membership framework for the profitto-member super industry with funds,
individuals and associates.
To be eligible for membership in 2016, the
following circumstances needed to be met:
—— Fund membership is available only
to profit-to-member funds where all
trustees and fund staff are enrolled as
AIST members;
—— Individual membership is only available
to those who are, or have previously

been, directors, staff members or
trustee directors of a profit-to-member
fund and wish to be an AIST member;
—— Associate membership is available for
organisations who are wholly owned
by a representative profit-to-member
fund, or are part of a regulator or
Government agency involved in the
superannuation industry.

in Tasmania. As 2016 came to an end,
Clough Superannuation Fund and Transport
Industry Superannuation Fund wound up,
merging with other funds.
AIST had a 99 per cent retention rate of
member funds for 2016 and saw a 17
per cent net increase of staff and trustee
directors within our member funds – mostly
due to the growing trend of insourcing.

Merger activity was limited during 2016,
with RBF and Tasplan merging to form
the only profit-to-member fund located

DID YOU KNOW?

AIST HAS OVER

5,000
MEMBERS

52%
MALE

48%
FEMALE

THE MOST
POPULAR NAME
FOR MALE AIST
MEMBERS IS

DAVID
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THE MOST
POPULAR NAME
FOR FEMALE
AIST MEMBERS IS

SARAH

Our 2016 members

HOLDEN
EMPLOYEES
SUPERANNUATION
FUND
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Our 2017 – 2019 strategy
AIST operates on a three-year strategic
plan. As our 2013-2016 plan came to an
end, AIST undertook a process to develop
our 2017 – 2019 strategic framework.
The process commenced with a series
of workshops for our executive team
which reviewed the internal and external
influencing factors on the industry and
developed detailed Strength Weakness
Opportunities Threat (SWOT) analysis’ of
each business unit within AIST.
A workshop using Blue Ocean Strategy
to identify AIST’s areas of unique value
and opportunities to enhance was also
conducted, along with an in-depth
qualitative research project using designled thinking to understand the issues
affecting our membership and where AIST
can derive and develop increased value for
members.
We also conducted a quantitative member
survey to discover which areas AIST
members feel add value (or detract value)
from AIST. This survey also gathered
insights on where they believe the industry
is headed over the next 3 – 5 years.

AIST moved from using the
term not-for-profit funds to
profit-to-member funds as of
1 January 2017 in line with
the terminology used by the
majority of our member funds.
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Our member survey revealed the key areas
of value derived from AIST included our
policy and advocacy work, our training and
education programs and the role AIST plays
in community building within the profitto-member industry. These insights have
driven the formation of our four strategic
pillars for 2017 – 2019 being members,
advocacy, governance and the profit-tomember ethos.
These outputs were then forwarded
through to the board for consideration
during a two-day strategic board workshop
which focused our business activities (what
we do), our members (who we serve) and
our values (how we deliver to this purpose).
The 2017-19 plan provides a clear
framework for the areas of focus for AIST
and areas of value to our members. This
framework will guide the business via the
development of projects and KPIs for both
teams and individuals which ultimately
link back to our new overarching purpose
statement ‘to support, advocate for and
lead profit-to-member superannuation
funds.’

Our 2017 – 2019 strategy

EXTERNAL FOCUS

Why do we exist?
To support, advocate for and lead
profit-to-member superannuation funds.

Who do we serve?
Our members are the trustee directors and staff of the
profit-to-member superannuation funds – industry, corporate and
government – who employ a representative governance model.

What do we do?
AIST has four strategic areas of focus:

ADVOCATE
for a better
super system

We advocate for a
fair and sustainable
superannuation system
that delivers improved
retirement outcomes.

ENHANCE

member skills
We deliver thought
leadership and
professional
development to build
our members’ skills and
capacity for today and
in the future.

GOVERNANCE
We champion
excellence in
representative
governance that
is aligned with the
member.

PROFIT-TOMEMBER
ethos

We build communities
that preserve and
promote the profit-tomember ethos.

AIST Annual Report 2016
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The Governance of AIST
AIST is governed by a representative Board elected by the membership. The composition of the Board is determined by the AIST
Constitution, which has provision for 9 elected directors in two different categories as follows:
—— Six (6) Trustee Elected Directors, elected by Trustee Members of AIST Registered Funds;
—— Three (3) Staff Elected Directors, elected by Staff Members of AIST Registered Funds;
—— Plus up to three (3) Board Appointed Directors, appointed by the AIST Board, which need not but may be, a Trustee Member or Staff
Member.
The AIST Board represents members in the governance of AIST and ensures AIST focuses on issues that are relevant and important to the
membership. The Board meets six times per annum and Board members are elected for two-year terms commencing in March each year at
the AIST Annual General Meeting. To be eligible for election, candidates must be financial members.
The Board is also responsible for setting AIST's strategic direction including major projects and policy positions. As Board members actively
work in profit-to-member super, they have strong knowledge of the system and its effectiveness.

6 TRUSTEE ELECTED
DIRECTORS

PRESIDENT

3 STAFF ELECTED
DIRECTORS

UP TO 3 BOARD
APPOINTED
DIRECTORS

DEPUTY
PRESIDENT

Further details about our governance model are outlined in the AIST Constitution which is approved by AIST members and available on
our website.
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The Governance of AIST

NAME

AIST POSITION HELD

FEB

APRIL

JUNE

AUG

OCT

DEC

ATTENDANCE

Graeme Arnott

Staff Representative Director

Catherine Bolger

Trustee Representative Director

Deborah Blakey

Board Appointed Director

6/6

Louise du Pre-Alba

Staff Representative Director,
Deputy President

5/6

Naomi Edwards

Board Appointed Director

6/6

Angela Emslie*

Trustee Representative Director

Geoffrey Lake

Trustee Representative Director

5/6

Gerard Noonan

Trustee Representative Director

6/6

Michael O'Connor

Trustee Representative Director

5/6

Craig Peate

Trustee Representative Director

N/A

Stephen Pratt**

Staff Representative Director

N/A

Mark Puli

Staff Representative Director

N/A

David Smith

Trustee Representative Director,
President

Cate Wood*

Trustee Representative Director

4/6
N/A

5/5

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

1/1

5/5
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

0/0
3/5
6/6

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

1/1

Members are marked N/A where they were ineligible to attend the board meeting (ie not yet elected or already resigned).
* Angela Emslie and Cate Wood resigned 17 March 2016
** Stephen Pratt resigned 28 January 2016

46%

OF DIRECTORS
IN 2016 WERE

FEMALE

CURRENT
GENDER
BALANCE

4 FEMALE
7 MALES

FUNDS
REPRESENTED
ON BOARD

5 LARGE
5 MEDIUM
1 SMALL

AIST Annual Report 2016
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Our Board

David Smith

Louise du Pre-Alba

Graeme Arnott

Trustee Representative Director

Fund Staff Representative Director

Fund Staff Representative Director

AIST Registered Fund: Energy Super

AIST Registered Fund: AustralianSuper

Qualifications: Dip. of Financial Services
(Superannuation), RG146

Qualifications: Bachelor of Laws, Bachelor
of Arts (Politics), eMBA, Diploma of
Superannuation, GAICD

AIST Registered Fund: First State Super /
StatePlus

PRESIDENT, JOINED 2013

Skills and experience:
David has over 20 years experience in
representing working people. He has been
involved in the superannuation industry
as a fund director since 2007 and has
extensive experience in leadership roles in
member organisations.
Current roles held:
—— Director, Energy Super
—— Chair, Energy Super Remuneration
Committee and Claims Committee
—— Member, Energy Super Member
Services Committee
—— National Secretary, Australian Services
Union
—— Member, ACTU Executive
—— Member, AIST Renumeration
Committee and FRAC
Past roles held:
—— Director, HESTA
—— Queensland Branch Secretary,
Australian Services Union
—— State Treasurer, Queensland Branch of
the ALP
—— Director, Union Shopper
—— Director, Australian Discount Shopping
Services
—— Member, AIST Education Committee
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DEPUTY PRESIDENT, JOINED 2015

Skills and experience:
Louise has over 20 years experience in
superannuation and financial services,
specialising in policy, regulatory, legal and
compliance aspects.
Current roles held:
—— Head of Policy, AustralianSuper
Past roles held:
—— Director of Policy, Association of
Superannuation Funds of Australia
—— Senior Executive Leader,
Superannuation, Australian Securities
and Investments Commission

BOARD MEMBER, JOINED 2013

Qualifications: BSc Technology and
Business Studies, Chartered Accountant
(Scotland)
Skills and experience:
Graeme joined was appointed as the CEO
of StatePlus (a wholly owned entity of
First State Super) in October 2016 having
previously joined First State Super in
early 2007 with prior roles at JP Morgan
Custodian Services Australia and Price
Waterhouse.
Current roles held:
—— Chief Executive Officer, StatePlus
—— Member, AIST Finance, Risk & Audit
Committee
Past roles held:
—— Deputy Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Operating Officer, First State
Super
—— JP Morgan Custodian services Australia
(Various roles)
—— Price Waterhouse Australia (Auditor
and Management consultant)

Our Board

Deborah Blakey

Catherine Bolger

Naomi Edwards

Board Appointed Director

Trustee Elected Director

Board Appointed Director

AIST Registered fund: HESTA

AIST Registered funds: Mine
Wealth+Wellbeing; SAS Trustee Corporation

AIST Registered Fund: Tasplan Super

BOARD MEMBER, JOINED 2016

Qualifications: B. SC, CFP, FAIST, GAICD
Skills and experience:
Debby has extensive experience working as
a financial services professional. She ran her
own Employee Benefit Consulting business
in South Africa for over a decade, and has
held various leadership roles in a number
of industry funds in Australia. Her areas
of expertise including strategy, financial
advice, risk and compliance, stakeholder
management, business development and
change management.
Current roles held:
—— CEO, HESTA
—— Director, Industry Super Australia
—— Director, Australian Council of
Superannuation Investors
—— Director, Fund Executives Association
Limited
—— Member, Industry Super Australia
Advisory Committee
Past roles held:
—— Member, AIST Education Committee
—— Member, Finsia Funds and Asset
Management Industry Council
—— Member, ME Bank Advisory Group
—— Deputy CEO, HESTA
—— Executive Manager – Member Advice,
HESTA
—— Senior Manager, Moore Stephens
—— Senior Business Development Manager,
NGS Super

BOARD MEMBER, JOINED 2016

Qualifications: BEc; Masters of Labour Law
& Relations; RG146; GAIST, GAICD
Skills and experience:
Catherine has extensive experience as a
professional trustee director having served
on a range of industry fund and related
boards for the last 14 years.
Current roles held:
—— Director, Mine Wealth+Wellbeing
Superannuation Fund
—— Chair, Audit Risk and Compliance
Committee, Mine Wealth+Wellbeing
—— Director, SAS Trustee Corporation
(also Member, Risk, Audit & Compliance
& HR Committee)
—— Director, Powercoal Employees’
Entitlements Corporation
—— Director, Professionals Australia
Past roles held:
—— Director, Pacific Power (NSW)
—— Director, Coal Mining Industry (Long
Service Leave Funding) Corporation
—— Director, State Water Corporation
—— Director, Auscoal Super and
QCOS (Predecessors to Mine
Wealth+Wellbeing)
—— Director, Auscoal Advisory Services
Pty Ltd

BOARD MEMBER, JOINED 2015

Qualifications: BSc (Hons), FIA, FIAA,
FNZSA, FAICD
Skills and Experience:
An actuary by training with an executive
background in the financial services
industry, Naomi Edwards has extensive
experience as a professional director,
including chairing listed ASX companies,
industry super funds, and other not-forprofits. Naomi also has a background in
listed merger and acquisition activity.
Current roles held:
—— Independent Chair, Tasplan Super
—— Director, Tasmanian Economic
Development Board
—— Independent Director, Propel Funeral
Partners Ltd
Past roles held:
—— Chair, Australian Ethical Investments
—— Director, Australian Ethical Super
—— Director, Hunter Hall International Ltd
—— Director, Hunter Hall Investment
Management Ltd
—— Partner, Deloitte
—— Director, Trowbridge Consulting
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Angela Emslie

FORMER PRESIDENT, JOINED 2002
(RESIGNED MARCH 2016)
Trustee Representative Director
AIST Registered Fund: HESTA
Qualifications: BEc, Master of Business,
RG146 Superannuation, FAIST
Skills and experience:
Angela has extensive experience as a
professional trustee director having
served on a range of industry fund and
related boards for the last 20 years. In
addition to her trustee role, Angela is a
founding director of the consulting firm
LIME Management Group that provides
management consulting services primarily
to the health and community services
sector. She has a range of expertise
including strategic, governance and
investment-related skills.
Current roles held:
—— Independent Chair, HESTA
—— Director, Frontier Advisors
—— Director, Suicide Prevention Australia
—— Member, ISA Advisory Committee
Past roles held:
—— AIST representative on Stronger Super
Governance Working Group
—— Director, CareSuper
—— Director, Vision Super
—— Director, VicSuper
—— Director, AUSFund
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Geoffrey Lake

Gerard Noonan

Trustee Representative Director

Trustee Representative Director

AIST Registered Fund: Vision Super

AIST Registered Fund: Media Super

Qualifications: BA (Hons) LLB (Hons)

Qualifications: BA, MA Distinction, GAIST

Skills and experience:
Geoff is a lawyer and a local government
councillor in Melbourne. He has led the
local government sector at a state and
national level including as a full member
of the Council of Australian Governments
(COAG). He joined the Vision Super board
in 2009.

Skills and experience:
Gerard has over 30 years experience in
the media industry at the Sydney Morning
Herald and the Australian Financial Review,
where he was editor for five years. He is a
winner of a Walkley Award in journalism.

BOARD MEMBER, JOINED 2015

Current roles held:
—— Deputy Chair and Chair of Investment
Committee, Vision Super
—— Councillor, City of Monash
—— Board Member, Municipal Association
of Victoria
—— Director, South Gippsland Water
Past roles held:
—— Lawyer, Minter Ellison Lawyers
—— President, Australian Local Government
Association
—— President, Municipal Association of
Victoria
—— Director, Hawkesbridge Capital

BOARD MEMBER, JOINED 2011

Current roles held:
—— Chair, Media Super
—— President, Australian Council of Super
Investors (ACSI)
—— Independent Director, The New Daily
—— Chair, AIST Policy & Governance
Committee
—— Member, Media Entertainment and Arts
Alliance
Past roles held:
—— AIST representative on Federal
Government’s Stronger Super MySuper
Committee
—— Editor, Australian Financial Review
—— Board member, Innovation Australia

Our Board

Michael O’Connor

BOARD MEMBER, JOINED 2013

Trustee Representative Director
AIST Registered Fund: First Super
Skills and experience:
Michael has been involved with industry
superannuation funds since the 1980s. He is
currently Co-Chair of First Super, which has
72,000 members across the timber, pulp
& paper and furniture & joinery industries
and their communities. He has been an
official of the CFMEU since 1985.
Current roles held:
—— Co-Chair/Director, First Super Pty Ltd
—— Chair, First Super Investment
Committee
—— Director/Chair, Super Benefits
Administration Pty Ltd (SBA)
—— Director, Industry Super Australia
—— Director/Chair, Secure Employees
Entitlements Trust (SEET)
—— National Secretary, Construction
Forestry Mining & Energy Union
(CFMEU)
—— Vice President, Australian Council of
Trade Unions (ACTU)
—— Member, ACTU Executive

Stephen Pratt

BOARD MEMBER, JOINED 2014
(RESIGNED JANUARY 2016)
Fund Staff Representative Director
AIST Registered Fund: Prime Super
Qualifications: MBA, BCom, GAICD
Skills and experience:
Stephen has worked in financial services
for over 30 years with a focus on both
customer servicing roles and business
process management in the back office.
In 2000 he moved from retail banking
into superannuation. He has significant
experience in process management, project
management and has managed internal
audit teams, human resource departments
and technology departments.
Current roles held:
—— General Manager, Operations,
Prime Super
Past roles held:
—— Senior Manager in various positions,
SuperPartners
—— General Manager in various roles,
Trust Bank

Mark Puli

BOARD MEMBER, JOINED 2016

Fund Staff Representative Director
AIST Registered Fund: ESSSuper
Qualifications: BEc, PGrad IR, FCPA,
MAppFin, FAICD
Skills and experience:
For the past 25 years, Mark has worked
in financial services and has held senior
roles at Aviva Australia, Merrill Lynch
Investment Management and Mercer.
His solid background has also covered
superannuation, investment platforms,
funds management, strategy, mergers and
acquisitions, product development and
accounting. Mark was appointed as CEO of
ESSSuper in 2012 after initially joining the
fund as chief financial officer in 2009.
Current roles held:
—— CEO, ESSSuper
Past roles held:
—— Chief Financial Officer, ESSSuper
—— Navigator and Strategic Growth,
Aviva Australia
—— Vice President, Finance, Merrill Lynch

Past roles held:
—— Director/Co-Chair, Timber Industry
Superannuation Scheme (TISS)
—— Director, ForestWorks
—— Director, Frontier Consulting Pty Ltd
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Craig Peate

BOARD MEMBER, JOINED 2016

Trustee Representative Director
AIST Registered Fund:
Local Government Super NSW
Qualifications: GAIST (Adv), GAICD,
Ass Dip Business and Management,
Cert IIII Fin Services
Skills and experience:
Craig has over 37 years experience within
the finance and management industry of
Local Government within New South Wales,
and over ten years experience as a private
company director. He also has extensive
agricultural experience through ownership
of Dunnara Farms. As Chair of Local
Government Super, Craig – along with the
LGS Board – is responsible for the overall
governance of the organisation.
Current roles held:
—— Chair, LGSS Pty Ltd
—— Chair, LIF Pty Ltd
—— Chair, LGFS Pty Ltd
—— Director, Investment Committee LGSS
Pty Ltd
—— Director, Governance and
Remuneration LGSS Pty Ltd
—— Director/Owner, Dunnara Debt Services
Pty Ltd
—— Managing Director, Dunnara Farms
—— Revenue and Recovery Co-Ordinator,
Tweed Shire Council
Past roles held:
—— Director Audit and Risk Committees
LGSS Pty Ltd
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Cate Wood

BOARD MEMBER, JOINED 2011
(RESIGNED MARCH 2016)
Trustee Representative Director
AIST Registered Fund: CareSuper
Qualifications: BA (Social Sciences), RG146,
GAIST, FAIST
Skills and experience:
Cate has over 30 years experience
representing working people with
extensive experience in management,
superannuation, industrial relations,
advocacy, training, investment, insurance
and diversity.
Current roles held:
—— Chair, CareSuper
—— Director, Industry Superannuation
Property Trust
—— Member, ACT Treasury Investment
Advisory Board
—— National Chair, Women in Super
—— Director, Industry Super Australia
—— Member, Women in Super Mother’s
Day Classic Committee (Canberra)
—— Member, CareSuper Investment
Committee
Past roles held:
—— Member, Minister’s Superannuation
Round Table
—— Director & CEO, AGEST Super
—— CEO, Trade Union Training Authority
—— Assistant Secretary (Victorian Branch),
Australian Services Union
—— Research Officer, Australian Nurses
Federation

Remuneration
Members of the AIST Board are not paid for their services. Remuneration for AIST executive staff is as below. All figures are rounded to the
nearest whole dollar.
Total remuneration is made up of total package (base salary, superannuation and leave loading) and any bonus paid during 2016.
As per AIST’s Certified Agreement 2014 – 2016:
a) Super contributions are paid at one per cent higher than SGC.
b) Leave loading is paid at 25 per cent of four weeks base salary.
c) All employees are eligible for an annual performance bonus of up to ten per cent of base salary – subject to performance against
measurable key performance indicators.
The CEO is on a separate contract not covered by the Certified Agreement and bonus calculations are based on total package.
Base salary
(as at June
30, 2016)

Total
super in
2016

Bonus

Leave
loading

Full time
equivalent

Total rem
2016

$200,137

$20,023

$14,625

$3,849

1

$238,634

$53,169*

$8,919

$6,500

$1,509

0.6

$95,368*

$133,655

$14,821

$7,500

$2,570

1

$158,546

$150,362

$15,788

N/A

$2,892

1

$169,041

Executive Manager, Marketing
& Strategy

$129,511

$13,014

$8,500

$2,491

1

$153,516

David Haynes

Executive Manager, Policy & Research

$143,201

$15981

$9,000

$2,754

0.8

$170,936

Maryann
Mannix-White

Executive Manager, Business
& Operations Services

$151,041

$16,752

$8,500

$5,586

1

$181,879

Eva Scheerlinck

Executive Manager, Governance
& Stewardship

$155,054

$17,121

$8,000

$2,982

1

$183,156

Tanya Tran

Executive Manager, Finance & Analytics

$60,397

$6,342

N/A

$1,161

0.6

$67,901

Name

Position

Tom Garcia

Chief Executive Officer

Sharon Bierens

Executive Manager, People & Culture

Janet de Silva

Executive Manager, Media & Corporate
Communications

Meegan George

Executive Manager, Education
& Leadership

Theresa Hoogland

*Please note: Sharon Bierens moved from 0.6 to 0.8 FTE in September and took on additional responsibilities including management of
AIST’s education team. As a result her base salary was increased to $101,070. Sharon was therefore paid superannuation, bonus and leave
loading based on the higher base salary for the remaining period.
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Stakeholder relationships
We have identified our key stakeholders, grouped them into five key
categories and outlined the key issues or risks identified in 2016:
—— Members:
This includes the trustee directors, CEOs and fund professionals
working in profit-to-member super funds, as well as individual
members of AIST.
—— Government & regulators:
This includes the Government, other political parties,
independent MPs, government departments such as Treasury,
and regulators such as the Australian Tax Office (ATO),
Australian Prudential Regulatory Authority (APRA), Australian
Securities and Investment Committee (ASIC).
—— Media:
This includes print media, online media (including social media)
radio and television.
—— Advocacy and research groups:
This includes research and academic agencies, Indigenous
groups, women’s advocacy groups, and other industry bodies.
—— Employees:
This includes full time, part time, casual employees and
contractors.
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The below table outlines the key issues identified for these stakeholder groups and where you can find information about our activities.
Key issue/risk

Stakeholder group

Our response

Super fund board composition

——
——
——
——
——

members
Government & regulators
media
advocacy & research groups
employees

—— Fund governance (pg 36)

Adequate super balances

——
——
——
——

members
Government & regulators
media
advocacy & research groups

——
——
——
——

Reduced market share for profit-tomember funds

——
——
——
——

members
Government & regulators
media
advocacy & research groups

—— Fostering the profit-to-member
collective (pg 44)

Insurance product design

——
——
——
——

members
Government & regulators
media
advocacy & research groups

—— Insurance (pg 41)

Productivity Commission review into
default fund selection process

——
——
——
——

members
Government & regulators
media
advocacy & research groups

—— Default fund selection (pg 38)

Key changes to super rules

——
——
——
——

members
Government & regulators
media
advocacy & research groups

—— Proposed Federal Budget changes to
super (pg 38)
—— Objective of super (pg 38)

Understanding AIST member needs

—— members
—— employees

—— Our 2017 – 2019 strategy (pg 16)
—— Quality of AIST services (pg 47)

Quality of AIST service

—— members
—— employees

—— Quality of AIST services (pg 47)

Strategic planning and alignment of
vision, mission and fundamental goals
for AIST

—— members
—— employees

—— Our 2017 – 2019 strategy (pg 16)

Competition for AIST in the policy and
advocacy space

—— members
—— employees
—— advocacy & research groups

—— Why we're different (pg 28)

End of AIST 2013 Certified Agreement

—— employees

—— Our people and culture (pg 50)

Indigenous super (pg 42)
Super gender gap (pg 42)
Low Income Super Tax Offset (pg 43)
Tax changes to super (pg 38)
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Why we’re different
While Australia’s compulsory
superannuation system has been around
since 1992, not all super funds are the
same.
Profit-to-member funds – that is industry,
corporate and public sector funds – have
a unique value proposition that puts
members' best interests above all.
As the home of profit-to-member super
funds, AIST exists to help and support
our member funds which include over
60 leading industry, government, and
corporate (also known as company
staff) funds who collectively manage the
retirement savings of more than half of the
Australian workforce.
To do this we provide services in the areas
of advocacy, education, training, and
events which are designed to ensure the
people running profit-to-member super
funds achieve the best possible retirement
outcome for their members.

Our advocacy team – which includes
experts in policy, research and governance
– helps shape super policy and drives
research to deliver a more sustainable,
open and fair super system. We consult
regularly with member funds to ensure all
views of the profit-to-member sector are
heard by the government, regulators and
other stakeholders.
AIST and the profit-to-member funds we
represent are different from the rest.
Because our member funds return profits
back to their members, our views are often
very different from others who represent
for-profit funds.
Our advocacy positions are firmly focused
on the best outcome for members. Forprofit funds, which are either owned by
banks or insurance companies, are set up
to return a profit to shareholders. This
ownership structure means there is an
inherent conflict between shareholder
interests and the interest of members.

By contrast, the ownership structure of
profit-to-member funds means they are set
up to serve members only and always put
members’ best interests first.
AIST and profit-to-member funds have
successfully fought for a better deal in
superannuation for all Australian workers
including:
—— Calling for the compulsory
superannuation rate to rise from 3%
to 12%
—— A better deal for women and low
income earners
—— A fairer outcome for same sex couples
—— Ridding the super system of
commissions paid to financial advisors
—— Better transparency and disclosure to
consumers
—— Compulsory reporting of super on
payslips
—— Ensuring all employers pay workers
their rightful super

WHY PROFIT-TO-MEMBER
SUPER FUNDS ARE DIFFERENT
Profit-to-member
superannuation funds

All profits back to
members
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Retail
superannuation funds

Profits shared with
banks & shareholders

Visit our website
to check out our
video on who
AIST is and why
we’re different.

Highlights & plans
2016 HIGHLIGHTS

2600+
Read AIST’s
Federal Budget
summary

170+
TRAINING
EVENTS HELD
AUSTRALIA
WIDE

Performed over
RECONCILIATION
ACTION PLAN
LAUNCHED

180

AFSL knowledge
reviews

Young Super
Network grew by

60%
50+
SUBMISSIONS
LODGED

AIST
ADVOCACY
HELPS SAVE
LOW INCOME
TAX REBATE

Lead role in
development
of Gateway
Governance
Network

2017 PLANS
INTENSIFY
CONSULTING
WITH ATO
OVER SINGLE
TOUCH
PAYROLL

Advocate
for quality
default fund
selection

AIST
RE-BRAND

Launch and
roll out of
Governance
Code

U.S contact
centre study
tour

RESEARCH
IMPACT OF
REGULATORY
CARVE
OUTS ON
CONSUMERS

Train financial
counsellors
serving
Indigenous
communities

WORK ON
SMOOTH
TRANSITION
OF SUPER
BUDGET
MEASURES
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AIST committees
AIST would like to thank each of our 2016 committee members for their contributions throughout the year. The AIST board is responsible
for the appropriate, sound and prudent management of AIST’s business operation and has the authority to establish Board and ad hoc
committees to assist its work. The Board retains overall responsibility for any delegated activity at all times.

Board committees
In 2016 the Board was supported by two official Committees: the Remuneration Committee and the Finance, Risk and Audit Committee.
Membership of these committees is a matter for the board.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
This committee is a board business committee, with the delegated authority and responsibility of overseeing the CEO's role and AIST's staff
remuneration, including an assessment of the CEO's role against the position description and KPI's, setting annual bonuses for AIST staff and
any pay increased outside of the AIST EBA, and assisting the CEO with senior staff appointments as required.
NAME

AIST POSITION

AIST MEMBER FUND

MEETINGS
ATTENDED

MEETINGS
ELGIBLE

ATTENDANCE

David Smith (Chair)

President

Energy Super

1

1

1/1

Catherine Bolger

Trustee Elected Director

Mine Wealth + Wellbeing;
State Super

1

1

1/1

Louise du Pre – Alba

Deputy President

AustralianSuper

1

1

1/1

Tom Garcia

CEO

AIST

1

1

1/1

FINANCE, RISK AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
This committee is responsible for overseeing AIST's financial operations, audit requirements and risk assessments. Its functions involve
ensuring AIST complies with all relevant accounting standards, monitoring AIST's risk management framework, monitoring cash flows and
accounts against the approved budget and reviewing contractual arrangements prior to presentation to the board. The committee meets
every two months, with the first meeting being held in February 2016.
NAME

AIST POSITION

AIST MEMBER FUND

MEETINGS
ATTENDED

MEETINGS
ELGIBLE

ATTENDANCE

David Coogan (Chair)

N/A

Pricewaterhouse Coopers

4

6

4/6

Graeme Arnott

Staff elected director

First State Super

5

5

5/5

Naomi Edwards***

Board appointed director

Tasplan

1

1

1/1

Geoffrey Lake*

Trustee elected director

Vision Super

2

2

2/2

Mark Puli##

Staff elected director

ESSSuper

2

2

2/2

David Smith#

President

Energy Super

4

4

4/4

Cate Wood**

Trustee representative
director

CareSuper

2

2

2/2

Tom Garcia

CEO

AIST

6

6

6/6

Maryann Mannix-White

Executive Manager, Business
and Operations Services &
Company Secretary

AIST

6

6

6/6

Tanya Tran

Executive Manager, Finance
and Analytics

AIST

6

6

6/6

* Geoffrey Lake resigned from committee April 2016
*** Appointed and resigned from committee June 2016
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** Cate Wood resigned from committee February 2016
# Appointed June 2016 		
## Appointed October 2016

AIST committees
Other committees:
The Board has also created two ad-hoc committees to assist its work, though the Board retains responsibility for any activities delegated.
The Education Committee and Policy and Governance Committees are comprised of AIST members, associates and staff that are suitability
qualified and experienced to contribute to AIST’s education and policy platforms. Membership is managed by the Chairs of each committee
and is by invitation only taking into account any skills or representation the committees needs to meet AIST’s mission. Committees should
have at least five members and there is currently no maximum amount of members that can join.
EDUCATION
This committee contributes to the development of AIST's education platform and content, monitors superannuation education trends,
proposing initiatives for new educational activities and suggesting educational topics for conferences, seminars and lunches.
NAME

AIST ROLE

ORGANISATION

Craig Peate (Chair)

Trustee elected director

Local Government Super

Trent Edlin

AIST member

Hostplus

Adam Gibson

AIST member

AustralianSuper

Julie Haines

AIST member

Statewide Super

Amy Maiolo

AIST member

LUCRF Super

Bruce McBain

AIST associate

Corporate Superannuation Association

Johanna Neilsen

AIST member

Cbus

Graeme Russell

AIST member

Media Super

Sophie Sigalas

AIST member

HESTA

Cate Wood*

AIST member

CareSuper

Sharon Bierens

Executive Manager, People & Culture

AIST

Sally Graham

Education Manager

AIST

Genevieve Johnson

Education Project Management Coordinator

AIST

Maryann Mannix-White

Executive Manager, Business and Operations
Services & Company Secretary

AIST

* Cate Wood resigned as chair in September 2016
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POLICY AND GOVERNANCE
This committee contributes to the development of AIST's Policy Platform and specific polices stemming from it. Its functions include
monitoring superannuation policy developments, providing input for AIST submissions, making recommendations on research projects and
suggesting policy topics for engagement programs such as conferences.
NAME

AIST ROLE

ORGANISATION

Geoffrey Lake (Chair)

Trustee elected director

Vision Super

Catherine Bolger

Trustee elected director

Mine Wealth + Wellbeing; State Super

Melissa Birks

AIST associate

Link Group

Sandra Buckley

AIST associate

Women In Super

Benedict Davies

AIST member

UniSuper

Louise du Pre-Alba

Staff elected director

AustralianSuper

John Holland

AIST member

Sunsuper

Rosemary Kelly

AIST member

First State Super

Julie Lander

AIST member

CareSuper

Rodney Maddock

AIST research partner

Australian Centre for Financial Studies

Rod Masson

AIST member

Cbus

Zak May

AIST associate

Industry Super Australia

Patrick McAvaney

AIST member

Super SA

Bruce McBain

AIST associate

Corporate Superannuation Australia

Steven Miller

AIST member

TelstraSuper

Phillip Mussared

AIST member

RBF

Gerard Noonan

Trustee elected director

Media Super

Andrew Proebstl

AIST member

legalsuper

Stephen Reilly

AIST member

HESTA

David Smelt

AIST member

Statewide Super

Ann Smith

AIST member

First State Super

Cate Wood

AIST member

CareSuper

Tom Garcia

CEO

AIST

David Haynes

Executive Manager, Policy & Research

AIST

Janet de Silva

Executive Manager, Media & Communications

AIST

Mark Sanders

Training Consultant

AIST

Eva Scheerlinck

Executive Manager, Governance & Stewardship

AIST

Jake Sims

Research Officer

AIST

Karen Volpato

Senior Policy Adviser

AIST

Richard Webb

Policy and Regulatory Analyst

AIST
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Executive management team

Tom Garcia

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Age: 46
Appointed: 2013
Qualifications: BE (Hons), Adv Dip FP,
Grad Cert Bus, GAIST
Career overview:
—— Executive Manager,
Policy and Research – AIST
—— Paraplanning Manager, Financial
Planner, Project Manager – Industry
Fund Financial Planning
—— Engineering Manager, Michelin
Australia Pty Ltd
—— Engineer, Bridgestone Australia Ltd
Since his appointment as CEO, Tom has
been actively involved in helping AIST
member funds deal with the many
challenges facing the super industry,
particularly focussing on improving the
system to be fairer, more sustainable and to
benefit the member.
Tom is an active participant in the ongoing
debate about superannuation policy and
a member of the ATO’s Superannuation
Industry Stewardshop Group and ASX
Corporate Governance Council. Tom is also
involved in ACSI member council and ACFS
Industry Advisory Council.

Maryann
Mannix-White

EXECUTIVE MANAGER,
BUSINESS & OPERATIONS SERVICES
& COMPANY SECRETARY
Age: 50
Appointed: 2004
Qualifications: GDipAppCorpGov
(in progress)
Career overview:
—— General Manager Marketing &
Communications, Make-A-Wish
Foundation of Australia
—— Marketing Manager, Tasmanian
Convention Bureau
—— Sales Manager, Melbourne Convention
and Visitors Bureau
Maryann is responsible for membership,
events and IT at AIST. These teams manage
the relationships with AIST members,
undertake event management logistics for
all AIST events, and provide IT solutions for
the business. These teams do their utmost
to ensure the member or stakeholder
experience is of the highest quality it can be.

Eva Scheerlinck

EXECUTIVE MANAGER,
GOVERNANCE & STEWARDSHIP

Age: 44
Appointed: 2010
Qualifications: BA, LLB, Grad. Dip. Comm.
Mgmt, GAICD, GAIST
Career overview:
—— Principal, Scheerlinck Consulting
—— CEO, Australian Lawyers Alliance/
Australian Plaintiff Lawyers Association
—— National Policy Manager, Australian
Plaintiff Lawyers Association
—— Solicitor, Ryan Carlisle Thomas
Eva and her team are responsible for
leading best practice governance in profitto-member super funds, providing thought
leadership in areas of policy and practical
application. They work closely with the
industry and regulators providing guidance
on reform implementation, while offering
practical services such as governance
tools and services. The team also leads
the industry in improving superannuation
outcomes for Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander peoples.

Prior to joining AIST, Tom spent five years
with Industry Fund Services in a number of
key financial planning, project management
and management roles. Previous to that
Tom spent nearly 10 years at Michelin,
finally as Engineering manager.

AIST Annual Report 2016

/33

Executive management team

Meegan George
EXECUTIVE MANAGER,
EDUCATION & LEADERSHIP
(RESIGNED SEPTEMBER 2016)
Age: 44
Appointed: 2012
Qualifications: Bcom, Accounting Grad
(UTS) Dip NLP, GAICD, Certificate IV in
Workplace Training and Assessment
Career overview:
—— Chief Commercial Officer, Governance
Institute of Australia (current)
—— Strategic Education Consultant for
Finsia, RGA International, AMP Financial
Planning, Deutsche Bank Australia
—— Learning and Development Manager,
JP Morgan plc
—— Relationship Manager, JP Morgan plc
—— Client Service Manager, State Street
Australia Limited
Meegan and her team are responsible
for providing education programs that
enhance workplace skills and behaviours
of AIST member employees. The team
works closely with many leading education
providers, superannuation industry partners
and AIST members to offer relevant,
cost effective and high quality education
solutions. The team consists of experienced
industry professionals, specialising in
superannuation and adult learning
principles. They are also responsible for
the Super Grads and mentoring programs
at AIST.
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David Haynes

Sharon Bierens

Age: 58

Age: 47

Appointed: 2013

Appointed: 2014

Qualifications: BA(Hon), Dip. Fin. Services,
FAIST

Qualifications: Bachelor of Arts & Law,
MBA (in progress), Certificate IV in
Workplace Training and Assessment

EXECUTIVE MANAGER,
POLICY & RESEARCH

Career overview:
—— General Manager, Industry Fund Services
—— Executive Manager, Financial Advice &
Retail Investments, ME Group
—— Chief Executive, AUSfund, IRIS, ME
Investment Funds
—— Account Manager, Australian
Administration Services (AAS)
—— Director, Gateway Network Governance
Body (current)
—— Chair, Audit & Risk Committee, Council
of the Aging (Vic) (current)
—— Executive Superannuation Advisor, IQ
Business Group (current)
—— Monash Business School, Banking &
Finance Advisory Committee (current)
David and his team are responsible
for working with AIST members in the
development of policies and research to
advance retirement outcomes for members
of profit-to-member funds, and to advocate
for their adoption through representations.
They do this by writing submissions, papers
and articles, by participating in public and
private forums, by engaging with parliament
government, regulators and industry
stakeholders, and by supporting all parts of
AIST in delivering services to members.

EXECUTIVE MANAGER,
PEOPLE & CULTURE

Career overview:
—— Human Resources Manager,
MCM Media
—— Human Resources Manager, The Social
Research Centre
—— Human Resources Manager,
Mercy Health
—— Human Resources Manager, Victoria
Hospitals’ Industrial Association
—— Human Resources Manager, JP Morgan/
Salomon Smith Barney
—— Human Resources Manager,
Healthscope
—— Solicitor, Minter Ellison
Sharon is responsible for people and culture
at AIST. This role is important in ensuring
that the staff members within the teams
of AIST are well supported, balanced and
provided with the relevant professional
development to ensure that they are
operating at their optimum level so that the
member or stakeholder experience at AIST
is of the highest quality it can be.

Executive management team

Janet de Silva

Theresa Hoogland

Tanya Tran

Age: 57

Age: 38

Age: 36

Appointed: 2007

Appointed: 2011

Appointed: 2011

Qualifications: BSc (Hons), GAIST

Qualifications: AdvDipAdv, AdvDipPR,
DipBusMan

Qualifications: BIS, MAcct, CPA

EXECUTIVE MANAGER,
MEDIA & COMMUNICATIONS

Career overview:
—— Personal finance and lifestyle freelance
journalist, Age/SMH Newspaper
—— Deputy Editor, Age Epicure Section
—— Editor, personal financial section, Age
Newspaper
—— Finance journalist, Australian Financial
Review
—— Director, Mothers’ Day Classic
Foundation (current)
Janet is responsible for the development
and implementation of AIST’s media and
communications strategy. The media team
works closely with the policy, governance,
education and events teams to ensure
that AIST communicates effectively to
our member funds, the Government, the
media, and other key stakeholders.

EXECUTIVE MANAGER,
MARKETING & STRATEGY

Career overview:
—— Marketing and Fundraising Manager,
Guide Dogs Victoria
—— Events Coordinator, Guide Dogs Victoria
The marketing team is responsible for the
development and delivery of strategies to
enhance the member experience across
professional development, including
education and events as well promoting the
AIST brand to the industry more broadly.
Marketing is also responsible for the
procurement and management of AIST’s
sponsorship portfolio.

EXECUTIVE MANAGER,
FINANCE & ANALYTICS

Career overview:
—— Accountant, Melbourne University
Publishing
—— Area Accountant, Flight Centre
Tanya and her team are responsible for
managing the finances of AIST. This includes
financial reporting, budgeting, forecasting,
interim and end of year audits, risk
management, data analytics and database
processing. The team ensures the efficiency
of reporting and smooth operation of the
business’ finances as well as on-going
improvement and accuracy of the financial
reporting system and CRM.
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Fund governance
THE GOVERNANCE CODE
In September 2015, the Government
proposed changes to the board
composition of all APRA-regulated
superannuation funds, mandating at least
one-third independent directors including
an independent Chair.
Months of political debate over the
proposed changes finally came to a
conclusion at the end of 2015 with
a coalition of cross-bench senators
confirming it would not support the
government’s Governance Trustee Bill. As
an alternative, Senators Madigan, Lazarus,
Xenophon and Lambie proposed an
industry review of profit-to-member fund
governance.
AIST and Industry Super Australia (ISA)
agreed to commission a review by former
RBA Governor and Treasury Secretary
Bernie Fraser to lead the development of a
best practice Governance Code for profitto-member super funds.
The Fraser Governance Review sought
submissions in relation to the published
scope of the review, held meetings with
key stakeholder groups and worked with
an expert panel to investigate and test
proposals for the good governance of the
profit-to-member superannuation sector.
The release of the report was delayed when
both houses of parliament were dissolved
and the Federal election was called for 2
July.
A new cross bench was elected and
they have been briefed by Mr Fraser
on the review. AIST first introduced A
Fund Governance Framework for profitto-member Superannuation Funds in
2011 to assist members in meeting their
trustee obligations, while developing the
professionalism and integrity of the AIST
trustee community.
Member consultations on a draft Code
took place throughout 2016 and AIST
began working on a draft Governance
Code consulting international research
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and leading governance practice from
around the world. Extensive work on the
development of a Code of Governance for
the profit-to-members superannuation
sector was undertaken throughout the year.
The code – based on the ASX
corporate governance principles and
recommendations – was released for
consultation with AIST members in early
2017.
Many of the principles espoused in the
third edition AIST's Fund Governance
Framework carry over into the new
Governance Code. The ASX corporate
governance principles form a key element
of the proposed Governance Code, giving
structure to the principles and alignment,
where relevant, with the good governance
of ASX listed entities.

GOVERNANCE IDEAS
EXCHANGE
AIST also ran the 2016 Governance Ideas
Exchange that had a strong focus on the
current issues impacting on the roles and
responsibilities of super fund boards.
Topics included ASIC’s views on risk culture,
culture within advice and robo-advice;
exploring the key principles of diversity,
unconscious bias and how this impacts
funds at board level; and whistleblowers –
getting the policy and process right – what
works and doesn’t. Over 90 per cent of
delegates rated the day as exceeding their
reason for attending.

GENDER DIVERSITY
AIST is committed to improving gender
diversity on superannuation fund
boards in the profit-to-member sector.
AIST recognises the positive impact
that gender diversity can bring to an
organisation, from improved organisational
performance to avoiding a group-think
mentality in the boardroom. Given the
benefits that gender diversity brings,
and the under representation of women
in the boardroom, AIST believes that
superannuation fund boards should be
comprised of a minimum of 40% of each
gender by 2017.
In late 2016 AIST invited Australian member
funds to participate in a research project
exploring the gender diversity practices
of the profit-to-member superannuation
industry, with a view to release a report to
industry detailing the findings in early-mid
2017.

The championing of governance
and professional standards
was ranked the second most
‘value-adding’ service provided
by AIST in the 2016 member
survey.

Fund governance
TRUSTEE DIRECTOR
COURSE
In 2016 participants in the Trustee
Director Course – Build your expertise
reported renewed levels of competence
following completion of the program.
Featuring strongly in feedback was the
value of the combination of interaction
with expert facilitators and peers and the
structured focus on the unique regulatory
requirements for trustee directors,
resulting in improvement to best practice in
governance.
Similarly, Trustee Director Course –
Enhance your excellence participants were
challenged to reconsider their current
thinking using scenario and activitybased learning. The rigorous assessment
consolidated learnings from the course on
superannuation governance and strategy.
Graduates and their fund chairs described
an increased capacity in the evaluation
of board decisions providing improved
strategic decision making, contributing
to better long-term outcomes for fund
members.

“The course is extremely well constructed with energetic
and superior facilitators. It far exceeded my expectations
and I would highly recommend it to other directors. The take
away course materials are the best I have seen and I will
treat them as my ‘bible’.”
Christine Maher, Trustee Director, Energy Super

Participation in the program improves
capability at board level, in turn enhancing
the quality of decisions, thus shaping a
stable and sustainable future for members.

TRUSTEE OF THE YEAR
AIST announced Juliet Brown AO as
the recipient of the AIST Trustee of the
Year Award at the Conference of Major
Superannuation Funds (CMSF) in Adelaide.
Juliet Brown is Chair of Statewide and was
formerly Chair of Local Super. Ms Brown
played a pivotal role in the successful
merger of Local Super and Statewide.
The Award – sponsored by Schroders for
the last six years – recognises the significant
contribution that leading trustees in the
profit-to-member super sector make
towards improving retirement outcomes.
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Key changes to super
2016 FEDERAL BUDGET
CHANGES TO SUPER
The Government announced significant
reform to superannuation in the 2016
Federal Budget. After much debate and
some relatively minor changes, the package
of super tax changes were successfully
passed through both houses of Parliament
in November.
Measures included:
—— Low Income Super Tax Offset (LISTO)
which will replace the Low Income
Super Contribution to provide a super
boost of up to $500 a year for those
earning less than $37,000 – estimated*
to benefit more than three million
workers;
—— Transfer balance cap, which limits
how much can be transferred into
retirement phase to $1.6 million –
estimated* to impact less than 1% of
fund members;
—— Concessional superannuation
contributions, which reduce annual
cap to $25,000 – estimated* to impact
around 3.5% of fund members;
—— Reduction of Division 293 income
threshold to $250,000 – estimated* to
impact 1 % of fund members;
—— Reduction of annual Non-Concessional
cap to $100,000 – estimated* to impact
less than 1% of fund members;
—— Deduction of personal contributions –
presently only available to the selfemployed.
—— The ability for individuals with super
balances below $500,000 to make
‘catch up’ concessional contributions.
*Estimates are from Treasury.
While AIST supported many of the changes
– particularly the introduction of the
LISTO which is effectively the Low Income
Superannuation Contribution (LISC) under
a different name (see page 43) – we believe
more could be done to improve retirement
outcomes for this cohort of members.
AIST played a lead role in the re-engineering
of collection arrangements for high income
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earner's contribution tax. Under the
previous arrangements, individuals had
to approve the payment of the tax from
their superannuation. This was changed
so that the default was the deduction of
this money from a members' super fund –
making it a lot easier for both individuals,
funds and the ATO to administer.
AIST also played a key role in discussions
with regulators about the implementation
of measures. These arrangements are
complex and will remain a focus for AIST
in 2017.
AIST provided a timely update on the
Budget announcements the following
morning, including a consumer-focussed
summary to funds that they could use
in their own communications to fund
members. Over 2,700 individuals read
AIST’s Budget summary and the consumer
write up was extremely well received with a
number of AIST member funds sharing it on
their own fund websites, emails and blogs.
In 2017 AIST will continue to work with
the Government, Australian Tax Office and
Treasury, as well as other stakeholders to
ensure the tax changes are implemented as
smoothly and efficiently as possible.

DEFAULTS
With the Government set to release a draft
report on alternative models for default
fund selection, AIST has been working to
raise and build awareness of the consumer
benefits of the existing robust default
selection process.
AIST's position is that members' best
interests must drive the default selection
process. The vast majority of workers
continue to rely on default funds and trust
that the default fund will serve and protect
their interests.
AIST believes that the default selection
process – overseen by the Fair Work
Commission and incorporating a meritbased quality filter – will deliver the best
results for consumers.

With the default debate likely to end up in
the Senate, AIST is actively engaging with all
relevant stakeholders. During the year we
increased our media engagement on this
issue – which included the publication of
an opinion piece – and conducted relevant
research that we will plan to present to key
Senators next year. In 2017, default fund
selection will remain a focus, with research
and advocacy plans well underway.

OBJECTIVE OF SUPER
AIST strongly supports the development
of a legislated objective of superannuation
however we have concerns about the
Government's proposed objective outlined
in the Superannuation (Objective) Bill
2015. We believe the objective must
genuinely guide the development of future
superannuation and retirement income
policy and that the Government's proposed
objective does will not do this.
In addition to several submissions and
meetings with have had with Government
to express our concerns, we have
participated in collective advocacy with
other industry bodies on the importance
of the objective including a reference to
providing adequate income that delivers
a comfortable retirement. The definition
for the primary objective in the current
Bill before Parliament, omits any reference
to adequacy. We are also concerned that
the proposed objective fails to recognise
superannuation's role in increasing national
savings and the need for a gender lens to
be applied to super policies to address the
gender gap in retirement savings.
In late December we proposed an
alternative definition to the Economics
Legislation Committee Inquiry and also
raised other matters of importance, such
as the need for measurement tools. We
have further called for the establishment
of an independent publicly-funded body
to assess superannuation policy changes,
to develop and refine tools to be used
in this process, and to be available to
Parliamentarians intending to propose

Key changes to super
superannuation changes. We will continue
to advocate for on these issues to ensure
the development of an objective has real
impact on improving system efficiency
and sustainability. This includes appearing
before a Senate enquiry into the objective
in early 2017.

EMPLOYER COMPLIANCE
Retention of Superannuation Guarantee
(SG) Charge was a focus for AIST in early
2016, with legislation introduced to
Parliament that would have seen the
penalty paid by employers who fail to
meet their quarterly SG contributions on
time significantly diluted. The penalty
was to be changed under the Treasury
Legislation Amendment (Repeal Day 2015)
Bill but common sense saw a last minute
amendment remove the proposals.
Later in the year, AIST welcomed the
announcement of a Senate Economics
References Committee inquiry into the
impact of non-payment of the SG. The
Inquiry – announced in December – will
look at the economic impact on workers,
retirement incomes, competition, and
penalties, as well as the accuracy and
adequacy of the monitoring and recovery of
unpaid super. AIST will be seeking feedback
from members and input to our submission.
The inquiry is expected to report by 22
March 2017.

EARLY ACCESS TO SUPER
Debate on early access to superannuation
for purposes other than retirement gained
momentum in 2016. Early in the year it was
suggested that super should be accessible
for paying off student debt. AIST strongly
opposed this suggestion across radio and
print media, maintaining the position that
super should be used for retirement and
stressing the importance of setting an
objective of superannuation to help avoid
such propositions.
Later in the year early access to
superannuation was again raised, this time

for the purposes of individuals wanting
to pay for In Vitro Fertilisation (IVF). This
story was picked up by a number of media
outlines, including The Age/SMH, and AIST
again cautioned consumers against using
superannuation for purposes other than
retirement.
Against a background of the ongoing debate
on the use of the super to improve housing
affordability, AIST has commissioned an
economic paper on the impact of housing
affordability on retirement outcomes. This
research will be completed in early 2017
for presentation at CMSF and release to
members and the media.

FEE & COST DISCLOSURE
(RG 97)
AIST has taken a lead role in industry
consultations with the Australian
Securities Industries Commission (ASIC)
over disclosure requirements outlined in
Regulatory Guide (RG) 97. We strongly
believe that consumers disclosure must be
meaningful so that consumers can easily
compare funds and distinguish between
what they need to know and what is less
important. We remain concerned that the
RG 97 requirements in their present form
are inconsistent because of carve-outs
provided for some super schemes – notably
the wrap products offered by for-profit
platform providers. This prevents many
thousands of consumers from getting the
real story about their super funds. We
continue to advocate for a level playing
field for disclosure and reporting.
AIST is also concerned about the
implementation challenges of RG 97 and
the pressure this will put on our member
funds. We played a key role in gaining a
much-needed extension from ASIC for the
mandatory start date of the requirements
with the new commencement date now
September 2017.
During the year, AIST began work on a
comprehensive draft manual to assist our
member funds understand the complex

requirements and implementation of
RG 97. We established a large working
group of representatives from member
funds to consider the draft manual and
have commenced holding face-to-face
presentations of the manual to funds to
positive feedback. The manual is due for
release in 2017.
AIST has also commenced a detail review
of international disclosure requirements to
assist our advocacy and to help ensure best
practice in disclosure across our industry.

FOCUS ON EFFICIENCY
Recognising the benefits that an efficient
super system brings both to our members
and the members of their funds, AIST
has been a consistent advocate of
measures to improve the efficiency of
the superannuation system and reduce
systemic risk.
For example, AIST engaged with the
Australian Competition and Consumer
Commission about the competition and
risk issues to be considered in the possible
Link acquisition of Pillar Administration
(although this inquiry did not conclude).
Administration is one of many functions
that are typically outsourced by our
member funds, with the market dominated
by a few very large administrators.
Our focus on efficiency was also evident in
our detailed response to the Productivity
Commission study into the competitiveness
and efficiency of the superannuation
system. Our submission to the Commission
argued that appropriate measurement
and benchmarking of superannuation is
required to assess if the system is efficient
but we also need to ensure we have
meaningful data on which to base any
measurement or assessment.
Following the release of the Commission's
study report in November, the Government
has stated it will task the Commission to
review the system's competitiveness and
efficiency sometime after 1 July 2017.
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In the lead up to this date, AIST plans to
meet with Treasury to discuss and express
our views on the terms of reference of
the review. We will urge the Government
and Treasury to adopt an approach that
is the most efficient and straightforward
as possible whilst also stressing that costs
to the superannuation industry (and fund
members) be minimised.
AIST also responded to new demands on
our member funds in the development of
a new streamlined process to deal with
Operational Due Diligence (ODD) which was
raised by APRA in late 2014. AIST created
a working group of members and asset
consultants that drove a collective approach
resulting in an Operational Due Diligence
Guidance Note. This project brought funds,
asset consultants, ODD providers, fund
managers and APRA together with cost
savings estimated in the tens of millions of
members funds. The AIST Working Group
will review this Guidance Note on an annual
basis to ensure that it remains relevant
and will update it for any changes to APRA
requirements that may emerge.

EXTERNAL DISPUTE
RESOLUTION
AIST has been a key player in the
Government’s review of the financial
system’s external dispute resolution
framework. Towards the end of 2016
the Government launched a review into
external dispute resolution within the
financial system.
AIST strongly rejected the draft
recommendation to transition the
Superannuation Complaints Tribunal (SCT)
to a superannuation industry ombudsman
scheme as such a move will negatively
impact our member funds and consumers
in a number of ways. For example the
proposal would result in members and
consumers losing their right to appeal
decisions and consumers will be faced with
the prospect of being unable to enforce a
decision in their favour.
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AIST's advocacy on this issue ensures
that disputes within the sector are
resolved properly and that the confidence
of participants is maintained. AIST is
supporting the proposal for the industry
to develop a consumer Code of Practice
and for dispute bodies such as the SCT to
monitor disputes that are referred back to a
fund’s own Internal Dispute Resolution. The
future of dispute resolution will be a live
issue in 2017.

UNPAID SUPER
With unpaid super impacting on workers'
retirement outcomes, AIST continues to
raise awareness of this issue among both
our member funds and the wider public.
During the year we regularly engaged with
the media, including the publication of an
opinion piece on this issue and a feature
in our member magazine, SuperTalk.
We have called on the Government to
better resource of the Australian Tax
Office to improve their monitoring of
employer compliance and intend to make
a submission to a Senate inquiry into
the impact of non-payment of the SG,
announced in early December. Solving
the problem of unpaid super would have
enormous benefits for a significant minority
of members of profit-to-member funds.

SINGLE TOUCH PAYROLL
AIST has continued to engage closely with
the ATO about a proposed new online
employee commencement forms and
processes as part of the rollout of Single
Touch Payroll (STP). AIST is concerned that
the move to STP could have significant
ramifications for the way employees select
a super fund.
The implications of this initiative for default
fund selection and on consumer protection
means this remains a high priority for AIST
and consultations with member funds and
the ATO will hot up in 2017.

GOVERNANCE OF
SUPERSTREAM
During the year, AIST played a major
role in the formation and launch of the
SuperStream Gateway Network Governance
Body (GNGB).
The GNGB is the industry self-governance
body for the Superannuation Transaction
Network (STN) and provides governance
and oversight to promote the efficiency
and integrity of the network on behalf of
industry stakeholders.
Our continuing and very resource-intensive
role in the GNGB recognises that it is
critically important for our member funds
that the gateway infrastructure is secure
and high functioning. It is this infrastructure
that facilitates transmission of SuperStream
data messages by our member funds
and employers.

Our 2016 member survey
found that members see
AIST as a key resource for
knowledge sharing and
communication about the
superannuation industry.

POLICY UPDATES
WERE OPENED
MORE THAN

37,000
TIMES IN 2016

Insurance
A spate of negative media reports
about insurance claims management
led to increased scrutiny of insurance in
superannuation by the Government and
other stakeholders over the course of the
year. This includes heightened supervisory
focus from APRA and in September,
the Senate referred an inquiry into
the life insurance industry to the Joint
Parliamentary Committee on Corporations
and Financial Services for report by
30 June 2017.
AIST is supporting members to improve
their insurance offering though a number
of initiatives, including providing forums
for industry discussions through events
(such as our insurance symposium) as
well as regular meetings of an insurance
committee. Recognising the benefits

of collective action, we are also an
active member on the Insurance in
Superannuation Working Group (ISWG) –
a joint industry initiative established during
the year to help improve the insurance
experience of members.
The ISWG aims to develop new standards
for trustees and insurers and a Code
of Practice/Conduct that will set the
benchmark for industry practice. AIST's
involvement with the ISWG includes
addressing multiple insurance policies,
erosion of account balances, claims
management processes and member
communication and engagement. ISWG
discussion papers will be released during
February 2017.
AIST has also advocated strongly in the
media for retention of insurance within

superannuation – including a well-received
opinion piece that was published in
Investment Magazine in September and
additional commentary in The Australian,
The Age, The Sydney Morning Herald,
The New Daily and various trade press
publications.
In order to keep AIST members up to
date with the latest developments in
insurance, AIST held an Insurance Ideas
Exchange in October. The event was sold
out and saw more than 130 delegates hear
from industry experts on topics including
sustainable product design and claims
processes, the role of technology, mental
health and claims payouts. Feedback was
extremely positive with over 90 per cent of
delegates rating the day as exceeding their
reason for attending.
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Adequate & sustainable super
balances
ADVOCATING FOR 12%

INDUSTRY ENGAGEMENT

AIST continues to advocate for the
Government to bring forward its timetable
to increase the compulsory superannuation
rate (the Superannuation Guarantee) to
12%. Leaving the SG at 9.5% will not deliver
an adequate retirement income for many
working Australians, particularly those
who are members of profit-to-member
funds. Advocacy on 12% is a central plank
of our ongoing media engagement and
consultations with Government, other
political parties and independent MPs, and
relevant industry stakeholders.

The Indigenous Superannuation Working
Group
The Indigenous Superannuation Working
Group (ISWG) – chaired by AIST’s Executive
Manager, Governance and Stewardship,
is a cross industry commitment to
improve access and engagement in the
superannuation system amongst Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander peoples.

INDIGENOUS SUPER
AIST recognises that Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander peoples continue to face
social, economic and financial disadvantage
and as such we work closely with our
members, industry, government and key
stakeholders to drive change and make a
real difference to the lives of aboriginal
and Torres Strait islander peoples. AIST
principally creates change through
our Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP),
partnerships, and industry engagement.

PARTNERSHIPS
AIST is proudly partnered with the First
Nations Foundation, which provides
leadership to enable aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander people to achieve financial
prosperity. Each speaker and chair at AIST
events are thanked with a donation to
the First Nations Foundations, which goes
towards supporting the Big Super Day out,
a community event run by First Nations
Foundation that seeks to reunite Aboriginal
and Torres strait islander peoples with
lost super, consolidate their accounts and
educate them around the benefits of super.
Our relationship with First Nations
Foundations enables us and our members
to develop meaningful strategies to
advance Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander reconciliation and inclusion due to
First Nations Foundations knowledge and
strong community ties.
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Members of the ISWG include:
Industry Organisations
—— Australian Institute of Superannuation
Trustees
—— Association of Superannuation Funds
Australia
—— Financial Services Council
—— Women in Super

opportunities for employment within the
industry for Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander peoples.
Feedback from the summit was
overwhelmingly positive and after
hearing some of the challenges faced
by Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
peoples delegates expressed a desire to
create change within their organisations,
either through Reconciliation Action
Plans or direct community engagement.
A summary of outcomes can be found in
the Indigenous Superannuation Summit
Report that highlight the industry’s genuine
commitment to improving Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander peoples overall
experience with superannuation.

Superannuation Funds
—— AUSFund
—— AustralianSuper
—— Cbus
—— Colonial First State
—— HESTA
—— Hostplus
—— QSuper
—— MLC
—— NAB
—— GESB
—— UniSuper
—— VicSuper

AUSTRAC
AIST, through its involvement with the
ISWG, worked closely with AUSTRAC
to improve Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander access to superannuation.
Following extensive consultation with AIST
and the ISWG, AUSTRAC developed and
released new anti-money laundering and
counter terrorism financing guidance which
makes it easier for Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander peoples to meet proof of
identification requirements when engaging
with their fund. The guidance is available
on AUSTRAC’s website:
http://www.austrac.gov.au/aboriginalandor-torres-strait-islander-people

Indigenous representation
—— First Nations Foundation

SUPER GENDER GAP

Other organisations
J.P. Morgan
Indigenous Super Summit
The second annual Indigenous
Superannuation Summit was held in
Melbourne in early November, bringing
together government agencies, Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander advocates and
the superannuation industry. The summit
identified some of the issues around
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander access
to superannuation, possible engagement
strategies for the industry as well as

AIST continues to be an active stakeholder
in the superannuation gender gap debate.
With the focus on superannuation tax
changes passed by parliament, AIST and
Women in Super thought it timely to
convene a second Women’s Super Summit
to review women's superannuation
outcomes and the way forward to reduce
their almost 50 per cent super savings
disadvantage.
More than 50 delegates attended the
second Summit with an aim to prioritise the
next steps on the advocacy, research and

Adequate & sustainable super
balances
policy front and to explore ideas to address
the structural inequities within the system.

Our proposal has been prominently
reported by the financial media.

Delegates identified a number of areas
to focus on including a unanimous call
for heightened advocacy on lifting the
Superannuation Guarantee to 12 per cent;
the need for a gender reference in the
objective of super and a gender lens on
any future superannuation policy changes;
further research on additional payment
programs; and removal of the monthly
$450 income threshold. Survey results
showed the delegates found the Summit
exceeded expectations.

The LISTO passed both houses of
Parliament in November 2016 and – like
the previous LISC scheme – will ensure that
low income earners do not pay more tax on
their super than their take-home pay and
continue to receive an annual boost to their
super of up to $500.

AIST will continue to work on actioning
many of the recommendations from the
Summit in 2017.
AIST also used its submission to the
Senate Economics Legislation Committee
to recommend that the objective of
superannuation explicitly take into
consideration how policies will affect both
men and women.

LOW INCOME SUPER
TAX OFFSET
Throughout the year, AIST continued to
stress the importance of retaining the
Low Income Superannuation Contribution
(LISC) that was due to expire in 2017 as an
important equity measure for low income
earners.
As part of the Federal Budget tax changes,
the Government effectively retained the
LISC via a new measure – the Low Income
Super Tax Offset (LISTO).

AGE PENSION ASSET
TEST
First announced in the 2015 Federal
Budget, changes to the Age Pension Asset
Test continue to be a concern for AIST and
our membership. The changes – which
came into effect on 1 January, 2017 and
effectively double the asset test taper – are
particularly harsh to middle Australia and
threaten the integrity of the super system
by disincentivising voluntary saving. Using
our AIST-Mercer Tracker Tool, AIST was
able to clearly demonstrate the impact the
changes will have on fairness of the super
system. We continue to call for a reduced
taper rate.

AIST LAUNCH
RECONCILIATION
ACTION PLAN (RAP)
In August 2016 we launched our
first RAP. Our RAP showcases
our commitment to Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander
peoples and communities, and
outlines the practical steps that
we are taking to achieve greater
social, economic and financial
inclusion for Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander peoples.
Our RAP journey through 2016
has been positive: we changed
our recruitment policy to better
capture Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander talent and directly
supported Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander owned businesses
by purchasing goods and
services. While these changes
may be small, they contribute
towards financial inclusion and
are part of our journey towards
a reconciled Australia.
We look forward to developing
our second RAP in mid-2017
and continuing to strive for a
more sustainable and equitable
future for Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander peoples.

AIST played a key role in ensuring that
the full benefits of the LISC to low income
earners were retained, albeit through
the new measure. Through advocacy,
we argued against a different and more
complicated measure that was first
proposed by the Government. AIST is
now actively advocating for a doubling of
the LISTO, recognising that low income
earners need more government support in
achieving an adequate retirement income.
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Fostering the profit-to-member
collective
AIST has continued to strengthen its point
of difference as the representative body
specifically for profit-to-member funds.
Throughout 2016, AIST has continued
to build and strengthen the profit-tomember collective through a number of
avenues including meetings, conferences
and events. We build meaningful industry
relationships based on collaboration, open
knowledge sharing, trust and the key value
of the sector – members’ best interests.

SUPER HISTORY PROJECT
For the past two years, AIST has coordinated and managed the writing of the
first systematic history book on Australia’s
unique superannuation system.
Authored by RMIT academics Bernard Mees
and Cathy Brigden, Workers’ Capital – the
history of the industry fund movement and
the battle for universal superannuation is
due to be published in March next year.
This comprehensive history of industry
and profit-to-member superannuation
will provide our member funds and the
wider public with a major resource for staff
induction programs, general education and
teaching, public policy development and
public relations. It will also help promote
the philosophy and benefits of industry
funds and the profit-to-member culture
to the general public, both in Australia
and overseas.
The book will be complemented by an
AIST-built publicly available website which
will provide an archive for documentary
sources and oral histories as well as links to
State and national libraries.
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YOUNG SUPER NETWORK
(YSN)

COMMUNITIES OF
INTEREST

AIST’s Young Super Network (YSN) provides
an environment for young professionals
in the profit-to-member super industry to
expand their networks and knowledge.
Since its inception in 2010, AIST’s YSN
membership has grown to over 1500
members across five states, having proved
to be an enriching way to socialise and
network with members from a wide variety
of roles within the profit-to-member
super industry.

As part of AIST membership, members can
also access our Communities of Interest
discussion and networking events. Events
are held throughout Australia during the
year and give members an opportunity
for peer learning and collective problem
solving on specific topics. In 2016 we saw
the introduction of two new Communities
of Interest for the areas of risk and
insurance, with a further two communities
to be formed in early 2017 on the subjects
of human resources and financial advice.

Sessions focus on a range of topics that
champion the values of profit-to-member
super and members are encouraged to
meet new people.

WOMEN IN SUPER &
MOTHER’S DAY CLASSIC
FOUNDATION

In 2016, YSN membership increased by 60
per cent also expanding into Adelaide in
late August. 29 events were held over the
year, giving members access to over 45
speakers including many industry CEOs and
C-Suite executives.
A new concept called ‘Buzz Groups’
was trialled in Victoria in October 2016
which saw small groups of interested YSN
members form subject-specific discussion
groups. While the concept is yet to be
rolled out nationally, initial feedback has
been positive.

Women in Super (WIS) is a national
advocacy and networking group for
women employed in the superannuation
and financial services industries. WIS was
established by the Conference of Major
Superannuation Funds (now part of AIST)
in 1994.
In 1998, WIS initiated the Mother’s Day
Classic – an annual fundraising event that
has been held every Mother’s Day since
1998, to raise awareness and research
funding for the National Breast Cancer
Foundation. To date, they have raised over
$30.4 million dollars.
AIST supports Women in Super by providing
shared office space and equipment such as
computers, printers, desks etc. AIST has also
been a Supporting Partner of the Mother’s
Day Classic since the events inception, and
subsidizes part of the cost of office space
for MDC staff. AIST and WIS also regularly
work together on policy issues surrounding
women’s retirement outcomes.

Fostering the profit-to-member
collective
2016 SUPER GRADS
PROGRAM
A further 15 young professionals graduated
AIST’s Super Grads program in 2016
bringing the total number of graduates
from the program to over 120.
Started in 2004, the Super Grads program is
designed to identify and fast track the next
generation of leaders and foster the profitto-member ethos.
By providing a strong educational and
social grounding, the program boasts high
industry retention rates and is an effective
talent pipeline for the industry.
Participants in 2016 included Australian
Council of Superannuation Investors, AIST,
AustralianSuper, CareSuper, Cbus, Equip,
First State Super, Frontier Advisors, Local
Government Super, ME, TelstraSuper and
Women in Super.
Working in both Melbourne and Sydney,
the grads completed two one-week
residentials focusing on the development
of technical superannuation knowledge and
soft skills. They also attended the leading
conference for the profit-to-member
super industry CMSF, completed external
placements at related workplaces and had a
dedicated industry mentor for the duration
of the program.

Working with First Nations Foundation,
the 2016 Super Grads completed a group
project focusing on death benefit claims
processes across ten profit-to-member
funds. Feedback on the project was very
positive, with First Nations Foundation and
AIST deciding to use the project’s findings for
the basis of further work with the industry to
improve the beneficiary claims process.
At their graduation, the grads were inspired
by the encouraging words of Harriet Shing,
MP, Member for Eastern Victoria Region
and Parliamentary Secretary for Emergency
Services, and former trustee director of
Vision Super.
The benefits of the Super Grads program
were recognised this year when the program
was a finalist in the Australian Institute of
Training and Development Awards for Best
Talent Development Program.
Of the employers who completed the end
of program survey, 100% believe there
is value in the Super Grads Program for
new entrants into the profit-to-member
superannuation industry.
AIST is grateful for the support of the ACTU,
IA Group and ISA who continue to provide
valued insights and assistance through the
program’s Steering Committee.

AIST ONLINE

2700+

FOLLOWERS

1900+

FOLLOWERS

35+

POLICY UPDATES

77K+

UNIQUE WEBSITE
HITS

40K+

UNIQUE WEBSITE
VISITORS

Recruitment for the 2018 Super Grads intake
will commence in the first half of 2017.
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Fostering the profit-to-member
collective
AWARDS
The AIST Awards for Excellence celebrate
the achievements of those working within
the profit-to-member superannuation
sector delivering excellence in projects,
campaigns and solutions that are in the
best interests of their members.
In 2016 winners demonstrated the
dedication among profit-to-member super
funds to fostering meaningful relationships
with members.

Category

Sub category

Fund

Campaign name/Winner

Best B2B Campaign

Over $40,000

WA Super

SuperStream

Best B2B Campaign

Under $40,000

HESTA

Top 2 employer engagement initiative

Best Digital Campaign

Over $40,000

QSuper

Bill and Jill

Best Digital Campaign

Under $40,000

UniSuper

Pre-retirees Campaign

Best Direct Mail Campaign

Over $40,000

QSuper

Colour Your Future

Best Direct Mail Campaign

Under $40,000

First State Super

You & Investing

Best Integrated Campaign

Over $40,000

CareSuper

Consider & Commit

Best Integrated Campaign

Over $40,000

VicSuper

Your Future Is In Your Hands

Best Integrated Campaign

Under $40,000

HESTA

Income Stream Direct Acquisition Campaign

Best Internal Communications
Campaign

Under $40,000

Hostplus

Link Transition Internal Campaign

Best Internal Communications
Campaign

Under $40,000

Sunsuper

Customer Service: A better way to manage
change

Best Internal Project

FUM over $10bn

UniSuper

On-Campus Consultant Service

Best Internal Project

FUM under $10bn

Tasplan Super

The new Tasplan Contact Centre

Best Member Facing Project

FUM over $10bn

Sunsuper

Insurance Innovation

Best Member Facing Project

FUM under $10bn

Australian Catholic
Superannuation and
Retirement Fund

RetireSmart

Outstanding Fund Staff Member

-

HESTA

Dirk Dobbs, Business Strategy Adviser

Outstanding Trustee Director

-

HESTA

Lisa Darmanin, Director

Platinum Communications Award

-

CareSuper

Consider & Commit

Platinum Communications Award

-

VicSuper

Your Future Is In Your Hands
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Quality of AIST services
AIST engaged Think Impact to conduct a
member research program for AIST in 2016,
with an aim to evaluate the value that AIST
creates for members.
To deliver on its objectives, the 2016
Member Research Program incorporated
the following elements:
—— An online member survey sent to a
broad and diverse membership group.
—— Complementary interviews with a select
group of key stakeholders.
—— A presentation of the findings to the
Executive team.
—— A presentation of the findings to the
Trustee Board of Directors.
The review found that there was a
consistent message from stakeholders
that AIST is generally seen as doing a
good job and creating value for members.
The survey found that members identify
AIST as creating the most value in
government advocacy, governance and
standards, professional development, and
communicating to the industry.
Members reported a high level of
satisfaction with AIST services – particularly

with communicating to the industry,
conferences and professional development.
AIST's CEO and Executives were seen
as highly accessible and responsive to
members’ needs, both in face-to-face
interactions and over the phone. A number
of senior leaders interviewed indicated that
they simply picked up the phone when they
had a question or issue concerning AIST.

PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
Members again valued AIST's professional
development programs in 2016. AIST
continued to a run a range of professional
developments including conferences,
lunches and courses that were seen by
members as an opportunity for the sector
to share knowledge and demonstrate
thought leadership. The program was also
highly valued as an opportunity to network
with peers in the sector and share thoughts
and knowledge in a more informal manner.
AIST’s flagship conference, the Conference
of Major Superannuation Funds (CMSF),
was held in Adelaide and attracted more
than 1,000 delegates.

CMSF provided over 60 sessions and 100
speakers across governance; investment;
member experience; operations; insurance,
advice; leadership; and administration.
Feedback was positive – particularly in
relation to professional development,
networking and gaining insights into topical
issues.
AIST's training courses enhanced the
knowledge and skills of our members across
areas including the regulatory framework of
superannuation, the provision of financial
advice, managing the claims assessment
process, comprehending the role of the
trustee board and better understanding
retirement needs. Member surveys found
that professional development is a key
strength of the organisation and is valued
greatly by members.
Feedback from our members also
indicates that participating in AIST training
is an engaging experience, addresses
their professional development needs
and provides them with the skills and
reassurance to better service the needs of
their members.
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Quality of AIST services
COMMUNICATING WITH
MEMBERS
AIST is seen as a key resource for
knowledge sharing and communication
about the superannuation industry.
Members saw AIST as being strategically
positioned to provide access to leading
thinking and enable the sharing of best
practice across the industry, both nationally
and globally.
There was also interest in AIST broadening
the scope of its communications to provide
insights into data management, cyber
security and digital innovation.
Members were asked about particular
communication mechanisms and the
response indicated that electronic
mediums including the website, email
and e-newsletters were valued as high
quality sources of industry information.
The member update was highlighted as
particularly useful.

“The member friendly
budget update was
fantastic – it was
something we could
give to members. Well
written and ready to go.”
AIST member
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AUSTRALIAN FINANCIAL
SERVICES LICENSE
KNOWLEDGE REVIEWS
Australian Financial Services Licence (AFSL)
'knowledge reviews' aim to assess fund
representatives’ understanding of generic
and specialist knowledge as required under
ASIC’s Regulatory Statement 146 (RG146)
and in relation to knowledge specific to
each fund.
During 2016, AIST completed more than
180 reviews where AIST meets with
representatives of the fund and asks a
series of compliance-related questions
to ensure that fund professionals have
the knowledge they need to meet the
requirements of their fund's AFSL. Each
review is tailored to the individual fund’s
requirements.

MORE THAN

165,000

AIST EMAILS WERE
OPENED IN 2016
AND ALMOST

30,000

AIST EMAILS WERE
FORWARDED TO
SOMEONE ELSE

AIST then develops a training 'needs
analysis' for the fund to readily identify any
gaps in its representatives’ knowledge. This
analysis includes training proposals. This
helps to ensure that the members of funds
are provided with excellent, accurate and
compliant financial services.
Areas of review included legislation
and regulation relating to the AFSL; the
provision of general financial product
advice; and fund specific products and
services. Feedback was extremely positive
and resulted in consultation with funds to
target training to build the capacity of fund
representatives, ultimately leading to an
improvement in member outcomes.

AIST formed new partnerships
with the Association for DataDriven Marketing & Advertising
(ADMA) and the Australian
Institution of Management
(AIM). These partnerships
expand AIST’s range of
educational services, ensuring
that fund staff and trustee
directors in a multitude of roles
have access to the skills and
training they need to excel and
better serve members.

Trustee Director Course graduates
AIST would like to congratulate the following delegates who graduated from the Trustee Director Course in 2016:
Paul Bastian

Australian Manufacturing Workers’ Union (AMWU)

GAIST

Michelle Blicavs

Local Government Super

GAIST (Adv.)

Michael Borowick

Australian Council of Trade Unions (ACTU)

GAIST

Joanne Brady

Morningstar

GAIST

Sam Byrne

Local Government Super

GAIST (Adv.)

Martin Day

Prime Super

GAIST (Adv.)

Helen Gibbons

United Voice

GAIST

Leila Green

UniSuper

GAIST

Joanne Hawkins

Perpetual

GAIST

Gary Humphrys

HESTA

GAIST (Adv.)

Sandra Jericevic

Equip

GAIST

Katherine O’Regan

Local Government Super

GAIST

Antoinette Masiero

VicSuper

GAIST

Chris Meallin

Holden Employees Superannuation Fund

GAIST

Sean Parker

–

GAIST

Catherine Smith

HESTA

GAIST

Georgina Smith

NGS Super

GAIST

John Woodward

Statewide

GAIST

Trustee Director Course – Build Your Expertise: GAIST
Trustee Director Course – Enhance Your Excellence: GAIST (Adv.)
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Our people & culture
2016 saw AIST employ a number of new
staff members across a variety of roles
including education, data, marketing and
IT. There was also some repositioning
within the executive management team
with the departure of the education team’s
executive manager Meegan George,
however the rest of the executive team
structure remained relatively stable.
AIST continued with its commitment to the
health and wellbeing of its staff with its flu
vaccination program, workplace massages
for all staff, fruit bowl Mondays and the
continued promotion of AIST’s employee
assistance program for all staff.
During 2016, AIST experienced an increase
in its part time staff from 25 per cent to
35 per cent with two casual staff also
employed to meet business demands – a
rise on previous figures and an indication
that AIST understands the importance
of flexibility for staff and is committed to
employing a workforce that not only meets
its present but future needs.
AIST also continues to value equal
opportunity in the workplace. In 2016, 78
per cent of AIST employees were female
(slightly down on last year by two per cent),
with 86 per cent of the Executive team
also comprising female staff. Staff range
from ages 19 to 60 with an average age
of 40 years. No staff currently identify as
Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander.
AIST conducted our second Employee
Engagement Survey to give staff the
opportunity to give anonymous feedback
on their working environment and provide
AIST with an opportunity to evaluate
changes from the previous survey.
Results were very positive with an overall
improvement in the results from 2015
which was an indication that actions being
put in place by AIST to address issues of
concern were having their desired effect.
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Survey results included:
—— 92% of staff thought AIST delivered
exceptional service to its members
(up 12%)
—— 83% wouldn't hesitate to recommend
AIST as an employer (up 4%)
—— 83% believe the working hours are
reasonable (up 22%)
—— 100% agreed staff work well together to
achieve AIST's goals
The survey did identify some areas for
improvement for AIST, notably better
communication between team and cross
team collaboration initiatives. These will be
the areas for focus in 2017.
Mid-year we saw the introduction of an
online Human Resources Information
System bambooHR which has benefited
the business greatly in terms of human
resources management. The system has
made it easier staff to keep track of AIST's
policies and procedures and personal
information.
We also saw the re-negotiation of AIST’s
Certified Agreement, the outcomes of
which have benefited staff and the business
alike. The new Agreement has seen the
introduction of more generous terms
and conditions for staff making AIST an
attractive employer to work for as well as
cementing AIST’s position of supporting the
wellbeing of staff.
New entitlements included paid domestic
violence leave (in addition to existing
leave entitlements) and an annual pay
increase of 2.5 per cent or CPI for each
year of the three-year agreement. Other
existing entitlements such as wellbeing
days, super being paid on both the paid and
unpaid components of parental leave (up
to 12 months) and the opportunity to buy
additional holidays were enshrined in the
agreement. The staff bonus scheme was
also traded in for an additional one-off pay
increase for all staff members.

AIST also signed on to the Women in Super
Charter Addressing Domestic Violence
as part of its public commitment against
domestic violence.
In 2017, AIST will be moving offices to 150
Lonsdale Street, Melbourne. This office
will be more aligned to staff member’s
needs and will serve the future needs of
the business as it continues to evolve. AIST
expect to move mid-year and will keep
members updated.

78%

FEMALE
EMPLOYEES

38

MEDIAN AGE

4 YEARS

AVERAGE TENURE

11%

STAFF TURNOVER

AIST SUPPORTED
THE FOLLOWING
CHARITIES DURING
2016:
Father Bob Foundation, First
Nations Foundation, Mother’s
Day Classic, National Breast
Cancer Foundation, Prostate
Cancer Foundation of Australia,
The Salvation Army

Our 2016 industry partners
To aid our mission, AIST works with our industry partners who provide a revenue stream that supports policy, advocacy and education work.
Industry partners also provide global connections for AIST to utilise at various conferences and events throughout the year. In return, AIST
provides access to super fund decision-makers and influencers through attendance at conferences and events. We wish to thank all of our
industry partners for their on-going support and contribution towards assisting AIST to have another successful year.

Principal Partners

Major Event Partner

Premium Partners

CMSF Event Partners

ASI Event Partners
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Our 2016 industry partners

Governance Ideas Exchange Event Partner

AIST Awards for Excellence

Thought Leadership Luncheon Series

Media Partner
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Legal & Compliance Ideas Exchange Event Partner

Australian Institute
of Superannuation
Trustees

Financial

Statement

2016

ABN: 19 123 284 275
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2016 financial statement
Directors’ Report
The directors present their report together with the financial statements of Australian Institute of Superannuation Trustees (“the
Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the auditor’s report thereon.

1. Directors
The directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are:
Name

Fund

Fund Position

AIST Position

Date
appointed

David Smith

Energy Super

Director

Trustee Representative Director, President

14/04/2016

Trustee Representative Director, Deputy
President

01/01/2016

Trustee Representative Director

24/03/2014

Staff Representative Director, Deputy
President

14/04/2016

Staff Representative Director

18/03/2015

Louise du
Pre-Alba

Australian Super

Head of Policy

Date
resigned
13/04/2016

Angela Emslie

HESTA

Chair

Trustee Representative Director, President

02/01/2007

17/03/2016

Catherine Wood

Care Super

Chair

Trustee Representative Director

28/03/2011

17/03/2016

Gerard Noonan

Media Super

Chair

Trustee Representative Director

01/04/2010

Michael
O’ Connor

First Super

Co-Chair

Trustee Representative Director

20/03/2013

Graeme Arnott

First State Super

Deputy CEO/Chief
Operating Officer

Board Appointed Director

13/12/2016

Staff Representative Director

15/11/2013

Stephen Pratt

Prime Super

General Manager
Operations

Staff Representative Director

24/03/2014

Geoffrey Lake

Vision Super

Deputy Chair

Trustee Representative Director

18/03/2015

Naomi Edwards

Tasplan

Chair

Board Appointed Director

16/12/2015

Deborah Blakey

HESTA

Chief Executive
Officer

Board Appointed Director

11/02/2016

Mark Puli

ESSSuper

Chief Executive
Officer

Staff Representative Director

17/03/2016

Catherine Bolger

Mine Wealth +
Wellbeing, SAS
Trustees

Trustee Director

Trustee Representative Director

17/03/2016

Craig Peate

Local
Government
Super

Chair

Trustee Representative Director

17/03/2016
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2016 financial statement
2. Directors’ Meetings
The number of directors’ meetings and number of meetings attended by each of the directors of the Company during the financial year are:
Director

AIST Board

Finance, Risk and Audit Committee

A

B

A

B

Angela Emslie

1

1

Catherine Wood

1

1

1

1

Gerard Noonan

6

6

Michael O’Connor

5

6

Graeme Arnott

4

David Smith

6

6

5

6

6

4

4

Debby Blakey

6

6

Geoffrey Lake

5

6

2

2

Louise du Pre-Alba

5

6

Naomi Edwards

6

6

1

1

Mark Puli

3

5

2

2

Catherine Bolger

5

5

Craig Peate

5

5

Remuneration Committee
A

B

1

1

1

1

1

1

A: Number of meetings attended
B: Reflects the number of meetings held during the time the director held office during the year
Note that David Coogan from Price Waterhouse Coopers has attended five out of six Finance, Risk & Audit Committee meetings during the
year as Chair.

3. Principal Activity
The Company is a national not-for-profit organisation whose mission is to promote and protect the interests of Australia’s $700 billion
not-for-profit superannuation sector. The Company’s membership includes the trustee directors and staff of industry, corporate and publicsector funds, who manage the superannuation accounts of nearly two-thirds of the Australian workforce.
As an advocate and peak representative body for the not-for-profit superannuation sector, the Company plays a key role in policy
development and is a leading provider of research.
The Company provides professional training and support for trustees and fund staff to help them meet the challenges of managing
superannuation funds and advancing the interests of their fund members. Each year, the company hosts the Conference of Major
Superannuation Funds (CMSF), in addition to numerous other industry conferences and events.
The Company manages its short and long term objectives of providing advanced education in connection with the superannuation industry.
These activities are managed by the Company’s CEO with oversight from the Board of Directors through the Company’s 3 year strategic
plan. The Company’s performance is measured by attendance and feedback from members at various activities and conferences. The
financial management of the Company is managed through the Board, the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee and the Remuneration
Committee.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the activities of the Company during the year.
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4. Operating and Financial Review
The total revenue including interest income for the year was $9,331,927 (2015: $7,744,523).
The total comprehensive income after income tax was $406,891 (2015: $543,015). The Company is exempt from income tax.
Significant changes in the state of affairs
In the opinion of the directors there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company that occurred during the financial
year under review.
The Company’s year is 1 January to 31 December inclusive.

5. Events Subsequent to Reporting Date
There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report, any other item, transaction or event
of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect significantly the operations of the Company, the results of
those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

6. Likely Developments
The directors are not aware of any circumstances which would materially affect the ongoing development of the Company. Further
information about likely developments in the operations of the Company and the expected results of those operations in future financial
years has not been included in this report because disclosure of the information would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the
Company.

7. Directors’ Interests
The directors of the Company do not receive any remuneration for the performance of their duties as Directors. These positions were
approved by the Board to fulfil specific objectives.

8. Indemnification and insurance of Directors and Officers
The Company has not indemnified or made a relevant agreement for indemnifying against a liability to any person who is or has been an
officer or auditor of the Company.
During or since the end of the financial year, the Company paid a premium under a contract insuring the directors, the company secretary
and certain officers for liabilities incurred in those capacities.
Disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of premium in respect of the period cannot be determined from the insurance
contract and is therefore not disclosed.

9. Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration
The lead auditor’s independence declaration is set out on page 59 and forms part of the directors’ report for the financial year ended 31
December 2016.
Dated at this 13th day of February 2017
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors:

David Smith, Director
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Louise du Pre-Alba, Director
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Statement of Financial Position
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
In AUD

Note

2016

2015

3,021,505

1,501,915

4,434,249

5,688,672

298,405

115,144

482,046

919,411

8,236,205

8,225,142

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

9

Term deposits
Trade and other receivables

16

Prepayments
Total current assets
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment

10

77,757

123,184

Intangible assets

11

77,191

138,819

154,948

262,003

8,391,153

8,487,145

Total non-current assets
Total assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Income received in advance

18

2,672,593

3,392,780

Trade and other payables

17

593,417

586,007

Employee benefits

19

411,319

328,341

186,000

-

3,863,329

4,307,128

36,399

95,483

36,399

95,483

Total liabilities

3,899,728

4,402,611

Net assets

4,491,425

4,084,534

1,423,489

1,423,489

1,800,000

1,600,000

Retained earnings

1,267,936

1,061,045

Total equity

4,491,425

4,084,534

Provision for make good
Total current liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Employee benefits

19

Total non-current liabilities

EQUITY
Contributed equity
Capital and operational reserve

23

The notes on pages 64 to 80 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
In AUD

Note

2016

2015

Revenue

7

9,151,090

7,551,333

Expenses

8

(8,868,248)

(7,136,726)

282,842

414,607

Results from operating activities
Finance income

15

180,837

193,190

Finance expenses

15

(56,788)

(64,782)

124,049

128,408

-

-

406,891

543,015

-

-

406,891

543,015

Net finance results
Income tax expense

6(b)

Profit/(Loss) for the period
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the period
The notes on pages 64 to 80 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
In AUD

Contributed Equity

Capital &
Operational Reserve

Retained Earnings

Total Equity

1,423,489

1,600,000

1,061,045

4,084,534

Other comprehensive income for the period

-

-

-

-

Profit/(loss) for the period

-

-

406,891

406,891

Total Comprehensive income for the period

-

-

406,891

406,891

-

200,000

(200,000)

-

Balance at 1 January 2016
Comprehensive income for the period

Transactions with members, recorded
directly in equity
Allocation of retained earnings to capital and
operational reserve
Total transactions with members

-

-

-

-

1,423,489

1,800,000

1,267,936

4,491,425

Contributed Equity

Capital &
Operational Reserve

Retained Earnings

Total Equity

1,423,489

1,200,000

918,030

3,541,519

Other comprehensive income for the period

-

-

-

-

Profit/(loss) for the period

-

-

543,015

543,015

Total Comprehensive income for the period

-

-

543,015

543,015

-

400,000

(400,000)

-

Balance at 31 December 2016

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015
In AUD

Balance at 1 January 2015
Comprehensive income for the period

Transactions with members, recorded
directly in equity
Allocation of retained earnings to capital and
operational reserve
Total transactions with members
Balance at 31 December 2015

-

-

-

-

1,423,489

1,600,000

1,061,045

4,084,534

The notes on pages 64 to 80 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
In AUD

Note

2016

2015

8,729,698

8,729,685

(8,982,266)

(8,296,927)

(252,568)

432,758

Other revenue

393,686

496,950

Interest paid

(56,788)

(64,782)

Interest received

180,837

193,190

265,167

1,058,116

1,254,423

(1,300,700)

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

-

(130,701)

Acquisition of intangible assets

-

(115,870)

1,254,423

(1,547,271)

Repayment of borrowings

-

-

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities

-

-

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash
equivalents

1,519,590

(489,155)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

1,501,915

1,991,070

3,021,505

1,501,915

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATION ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated/(used in) from operations

Net cash from operation activities

12

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in bank deposits/ (proceeds from exited
deposits)

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

9

The notes on pages 64 to 80 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1. Reporting entity
Australian Institute of Superannuation Trustees [ABN 19 123 284 275] (the “Company”) is a Company limited by guarantee domiciled in
Australia. The Company is incorporated in Australia. The address of the registered office is 215 Spring Street Melbourne Victoria 3000,
Australia. The financial statements of the Company are for the year ended 31 December 2016. The Company is a non-for-profit entity
and primarily involved in:
—— Delivering high quality education, training and information and resources to those who are involved in the superannuation industry;
—— Providing support and resources to those wishing to develop the skills and qualifications to take up involvement in the
superannuation industry or to increase such involvement;
—— Establishing and maintaining appropriate professional standards for the representative superannuation industry;
—— Administering professional accreditation programmes and registers for those who are involved in the superannuation industry;
—— Providing licensing and compliance advice, and compliance monitoring services to the superannuation industry;
—— Organising meetings, seminars and conferences that facilitate local, national or international networks for those involved or
interested in the superannuation industry to come together to discuss and progress topical issues;
—— Undertaking research concerning superannuation and retirement income policy issues;
—— Supporting and encouraging participation within the superannuation industry of women and men from community groups and
backgrounds;
—— Fostering knowledge, debate and the development of ideas about superannuation in the Australian community;
—— Participating in debate and putting forward the views of those involved in the representative superannuation industry, about the
development of superannuation and the retirement income policies within Australia;
—— Promoting community awareness of the values of the representative superannuation industry and the benefits of having
Representative Trustees overseeing a viable and equitable retirement system in Australia;
—— Creating awareness about indigenous superannuation issues amongst funds and the wider superannuation industry; and
—— Undertaking activities that are ancillary to the activities listed in the preceding paragraphs, being activities that the Company
considers will advance its ability to pursue its purposes, and activities that are incidental to the activities listed in the preceding
paragraphs.

2. Basis of accounting and statement of compliance
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards (AASBs) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Australian Charities and Not-for-profit
Commission Act 2012.
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 13th February, 2017.

3. Functional currency
These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.

4. Use of estimates and judgements
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively.

5. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial assets which are measured at fair
value. The methods used to measure fair values are discussed further in note 13.
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6. Significant accounting policies
The Company has consistently applied the account policies set out in Note 6 to all periods presented in these financial statements.
(A) REVENUE
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and it can be reliably
measured. Revenue is recognised for the major operating activities as follows:
Membership fees
Membership fee income is recognised on an accrual basis, and recognised in profit or loss over the membership period.
Conference registrations
Conference registration income is recognised in the year of the conference taking place. Monies received in advance are recognised
in the statement of financial position as income received in advance.
Sponsorship
Sponsorship income is recognised in the year of the event taking place. Monies received in advance are recognised in the statement
of financial position as income received in advance.
Compliance, education and training income
Compliance, education and training income is recognised as revenue when the right to receive the revenue has been established,
which is considered to be on the provision of the service.
Interest
Interest revenue is recognised as the interest accrues, using the effective interest method.
Other revenue
Other revenue is recognised when the right to receive the revenue has been established. All revenue is stated net of the amount of
goods and services tax (GST).
(B) INCOME TAX
The Company is exempt from income tax pursuant to Section 50-5 of the income tax Act (1997).
(C) GOODS AND SERVICES TAX
Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority.
In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the
Australian Taxation Office (ATO) is included as a current asset or liability in the balance sheet.
Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing
and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating cash flows.
(D) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(i) Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.
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Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and are recognised net within other income or other
expenses in profit or loss.
(ii) Depreciation
Items or property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date that they are installed and are ready for use.
Depreciation is calculated over the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less
its residual value.
Depreciation is recognised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in
the asset.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Office Equipment

5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate.
(iii) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
(iv) Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated over the cost of the asset, or any other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.
Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of leasehold improvements,
from the date that they are available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Leasehold Improvements

5 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date.
(E) INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(i) Software
Software assets that are acquired by the Company and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
(ii) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to
which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit
or loss as incurred.
(iii) Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives, and is generally recognised in profit or loss.
The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Software		

3 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
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(F) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(i) Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognised as an employee expense in the profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered
by employees.
(ii) Other long-term employee benefits
The Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value.
The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the term of
the Company’s obligations and that are denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid. The
calculation is performed using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains or losses recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
(iii) Short-term Employee Benefits
Short-term employee benefits are not discounted and expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for
the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as result of
past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.
(G) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(i) Non-derivative financial assets
The Company initially recognises loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they are originated. All other financial
assets (including assets designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the trade date at which the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provision of the instrument.
The Company de-recognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
The Company has the following non-derivative financial assets: Receivables and investments.
Receivables
Receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Such assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition loans and
receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Receivables comprise cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition date
that are subject to insignificant risk of change in their fair value and are used by the Company in the management of its shortterm commitments.
Investments
Investments comprise deposits with maturities of more than three months but less than one year are included in short term
deposits. Such short-term deposits are stated at cost which approximates market value.
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(ii) Non-derivative financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.
The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category. Such financial liabilities are
recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
The Company has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: trade and other payables.
(H) LEASES
(i) Lease payment
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.
Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance expense and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the lease
when the lease adjustment is confirmed.
(ii) Leased assets
Leases in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Upon initial recognition the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to that asset.
Other leases are operating leases and the leased assets are not recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position.
(I) IMPAIRMENT
(i) Financial assets
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates that a loss event has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or
delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise, indicators that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy.
(ii) Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in profit or loss.
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(J) FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS
Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested (including available-for-sale assets) and gains on the disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets. Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method.
Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and impairment losses recognised on financial assets. Borrowing costs that
are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using
the effective interest method.
(K) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Australian Dollars at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at that date.
(L) NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET ADOPTED
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 1
January 2016, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. Those which may be relevant to the Company are
set out below. The Company does not plan to adopt these standards early.
AASB 9 Financial Instruments
AASB 9, approved in December 2014, replaces the existing guidance in AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. AASB 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments, including a new
expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and the new general hedge accounting requirements. It
also carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from AASB 139.
AASB 9 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The Company is assessing the potential impact
on its financial statements resulting from the application of AASB 9.
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
AASB 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces
existing revenue recognition guidance, including AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 111 Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer
Loyalty Programmes.
AASB 15 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The Company is assessing the potential
impact on its financial statements resulting from the application of AASB 15.
AASB 16 Leases
AASB 16 Leases requires companies to bring most operating leases on-balance sheet from 2019. Companies with operating leases
will appear to be more asset-rich, but also more heavily indebted. AASB 16 is effective for the Company’s 2019 financial statements.
The Company does not plan to adopt this standard early and the Company is assessing the potential impact on its financial
statements resulting from the application of AASB 16.
(M) DEFERRED REVENUE
Deferred revenue comprises proceeds received for services which have not been performed and for which there is a return
obligation, and is recorded in the statement of financial position, consistent with the revenue recognition policy (refer to note 6 (a)).
(N) CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies set out in Note 6 to all periods presented in these financial
statements. No new accounting standards applicable to the year ended 31 December 2016 have required significant changes to the
Company’s accounting policies.
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7. Revenue
In AUD

2016

2015

Membership

1,307,904

1,228,861

Events including registration & sponsorship

5,402,055

4,208,144

194,550

163,870

Professional development

1,255,615

914,804

Licensing and compliance

392,129

395,595

Luncheons

128,892

143,109

Other revenue

469,945

496,950

9,151,090

7,551,333

2016

2015

Exhibition

Total

8. Expenses
In AUD
Accounting and audit fees

27,230

27,180

152,832

46,682

3,058,780

1,906,477

Consultancy fees and research

355,285

509,514

Depreciation and amortisation

107,055

55,208

Information and technology

229,270

233,913

Insurance

28,933

19,825

Legal and other professional fees

26,863

5,031

Marketing and website expenses

84,239

153,340

-

99,606

Strategy and Board expenses
Event related expenditure

Membership related expenses
Postage and couriers

4,077

2,278

Professional development expenses

222,581

287,388

Rent and outgoings

268,990

257,958

Salaries

3,611,818

3,258,217

Staff training

83,648

20,559

Stationery and printing

16,018

29,665

Subscriptions

28,891

24,117

Telephone and data

26,527

15,548

119,570

61,010

Travel
Other expenditure
Total
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9. Cash and cash equivalents
In AUD

2016

2015

Bank balances

3,021,005

1,501,415

Cash on hand

500

500

3,021,505

1,501,915

Office Equipment

Total

Total Cash and Cash equivalents

10. Property, plant and equipment
In AUD
COST
Balance at 1 January 2015

37,892

37,892

130,701

130,701

-

-

Balance at 31 December 2015

168,593

168,593

Balance at 1 January 2016

168,593

168,593

Acquisitions

-

-

Disposals

-

-

168,593

168,593

Balance at 1 January 2015

(29,988)

(29,988)

Depreciation charge for the year

(15,421)

(15,421)

Balance at 31 December 2015

(45,409)

(45,409)

Balance at 1 January 2016

(45,409)

(45,409)

Depreciation charge for the year

(45,427)

(45,427)

Balance at 31 December 2016

(90,836)

(90,836)

7,904

7,904

At 31 December 2015

123,184

123,184

At 31 December 2016

77,757

77,757

Acquisitions
Disposals

Balance at 31 December 2016
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

CARRYING AMOUNT
At 1 January 2015
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11. Intangible assets
In AUD

Software

Total

Balance at 1 January 2015

130,310

130,310

Acquisitions

115,870

115,870

-

-

Balance at 31 December 2015

246,180

246,180

Balance at 1 January 2016

246,180

246,180

-

-

COST

Disposals

Acquisitions
Disposals

-

-

246,180

246,180

Balance at 1 January 2015

(67,574)

(67,574)

Amortisation charge for the year

(39,787)

(39,787)

Balance at 31 December 2015

(107,361)

(107,361)

Balance at 1 January 2016

(107,361)

(107,361)

(61,628)

(61,628)

(168,989)

(168,989)

Balance at 31 December 2016
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Amortisation charge for the year
Balance at 31 December 2016
CARRYING AMOUNT
At 1 January 2015

62,736

62,736

At 31 December 2015

138,819

138,819

At 31 December 2016

77,191

77,191
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12. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities
In AUD

2016

2015

406,891

543,015

Depreciation and amortisation

107,055

55,208

Operating profit/(loss) before changes in working capital and
provisions

513,946

598,223

254,105

(387,470)

7,410

86,732

23,894

32,290

CASH FLOWS / (LOSS) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) for the period
Adjustments for:

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables and
prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Increase/(decrease) in provisions and employee benefits
Increase/(decrease) in provision for make good
Increase/(decrease) in income received in advance
Net cash from operating activities

186,000

-

(720,188)

728,341

265,167

1,058,116

13. Determination of fair values
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair values, for both financial and nonfinancial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following
methods. Where applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes
specific to that asset or liability.
(i) Trade and other receivables
The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of
interest at the reporting date. This fair value is determined for disclosure purposes.
(ii) Held-to-maturity financial assets – term deposits
Term deposits are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.
(iii) Non-derivative financial liabilities
Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest
cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. For finance leases the market rate of interest is
determined by reference to relevant lease agreements.
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14. Financial instruments – fair values and risk management policies
The Company has exposure to the following risks from their use of financial instruments:
—— credit risk
—— liquidity risk
—— market risk
This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, their objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing risk, and their management of capital.
(i) Risk management framework
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the overall risk management framework
of the Company. Further, the Board has established the Finance, Audit & Risk Committee, which is responsible for developing
and monitoring the approach to finance and risk management. The Committee reports regularly to the Board of Directors on its
activities.
Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.
The Board oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company
(ii) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables and investments in term deposits.
The Company has established entry procedures for each new fee payer arising from new enrolments and this includes
communication of rules in respect of fee payment and other terms and conditions of enrolment. These procedures are overseen by
the Board. Fee payers that fail to meet entry conditions, fee payment requests or ongoing terms and conditions of enrolment are
precluded from participating in Company activities.
The Company does not require collateral in respect of trade receivables, however a member may be excluded in the event of nonpayment of fees for Company events.
The Company has established an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade
receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures.
There is no collective loss component of this allowance as the history of losses has not been significant.
(iii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s approach
to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.
Typically the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses and facilities
development as indicated for forward cash flow planning calculations, including the servicing of financial obligations; this excludes
the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.
To analyse liquidity, management performs cash flow analysis on a bi-monthly basis for the ensuing quarter.
(iv) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the
Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and
control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.
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(v) Capital management
The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base to provide for sustainable operations of the Company. The Board
of Directors monitor cash and cash equivalents, budgets, forecasts of expenditure and revenue to ensure the Company’s capital
base is adequate.
(vi) Credit risk
Exposure to credit risk
The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base to provide for sustainable operations of the Company. The Board
of Directors monitor cash and cash equivalents, budgets, forecasts of expenditure and revenue to ensure the Company’s capital
base is adequate.
CARRYING AMOUNT
In AUD

Note

2016

2015

Trade and other receivables

16

298,405

115,144

Cash and cash equivalents

9

3,021,505

1,501,915

4,434,249

5,688,672

Term deposits
Prepayments

482,046

919,411

8,236,205

8,225,142

The Company’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables arises primarily with fee payers located across Australia; however there
is no significant concentration of receivables by any individual fee payer.
Term deposits include $340,500 (2015: $340,500) which reflect deposits required to be held under the bank guarantee for the office
premises lease and credit card facility.
Credit risk relating to cash and cash equivalents and term deposits is minimal given the institutions the Company hold these funds
with.
Impairment Losses
The aging of the Company’s trade receivables at the reporting date was:
GROSS
In AUD

2016

2015

Not past due

76,902

108,151

Past due 31-90 days

18,368

26,441

Past due 91 days to one year

25,120

(19,448)

120,390

115,144

There were no allowances for debtors or write-offs in respect of the 2015 and 2016 financial year given that all debts are believed to
be recoverable.
(vii)

Liquidity risk

The carrying amount of the Company’s financial liabilities is represented by trade and other payables (note 17) and income received
in advance (note 18). The carrying amounts approximate contractual cash flows and are anticipated to be settled within 12 months
of 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: 12 months). The Company has adequate financial assets to meet these liabilities and
assesses liquidity risks as minimal.
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(viii)

Interest rate risk

Financial assets – variable
The Company’s cash and cash equivalents and term deposits are invested in deposits on terms between 30 and 365 days. These
investments are managed to take advantage of the best interest rates available at maturity while taking into account the Company’s
investment policy and funding needs.
Financial liabilities – variable
The Company has no variable rate borrowings.
Profile
At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:
CARRYING AMOUNT
In AUD

2016

2015

7,455,754

7,190,587

7,455,754

7,190,587

VARIABLE RATE INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets
Financial liabilities
Fair value sensitivity analysis
The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore a change in
interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.
A change of 200 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. The underlying assumptions and methodology is based on management analysis of historical data. The analysis also
assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2016.
PROFIT OR LOSS
In AUD

200bp increase

200bp decrease

Variable rate instruments

149,115

(149,115)

Cash flow sensitivity (net)

149,115

(149,115)

Variable rate instruments

143,812

(143,812)

Cash flow sensitivity (net)

143,812

(143,812)

31 DECEMBER 2016

31 DECEMBER 2015

(ix) Guarantees
Bank Guarantees
At 31 December 2016, the Company has been issued a guarantee from its financiers in respect of its lease and credit facilities.
(x) Fair values
The fair value of the Company’s assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2016 approximate their carrying amounts shown in the
statement of financial position.
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15. Finance income and expenses
In AUD

2016

2015

180,837

179,022

RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS
Interest income on bank deposits
Other finance income

-

14,168

180,837

193,190

Other finance expenses

(56,788)

(64,782)

Finance costs

(56,788)

(64,782)

Net finance income recognised in profit or loss

124,049

128,408

2016

2015

Debtors

86,789

15,626

Interest

89,387

79,592

122,229

19,926

298,405

115,144

Finance income
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

16. Trade and other receivables
In AUD
CURRENT

Other Debtors

The Company’s exposure to credit risk and impairment losses related to trade and other receivables are disclosed in note 14.

17. Trade and other payables
In AUD

2016

2015

63,966

188,609

GST payable

196,047

152,478

Accrued expenses

188,078

71,389

PAYG payable

135,326

153,531

10,000

20,000

593,417

586,007

CURRENT
Trade creditors

Other payables
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18. Income received in advance
In AUD
Event revenue received in advance
Membership revenue received in advance
Other

2016

2015

1,671,759

2,434,190

986,738

958,590

14,096

-

2,672,593

3,392,780

2016

2015

411,319

328,341

411,319

328,341

36,399

95,483

36,399

95,483

19. Employee Benefits
In AUD
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Liability for annual leave and long service leave

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Liability for long service leave

20. Funds, capital and reserves
CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
The entity is a company limited by guarantee. The maximum liability per member is $10. At 31 December 2016 there were 5,153
members, made up of Trustee Directors, Fund Staff, Associate and individual members.

21. Operating leases
LEASES AS LESSEE
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:
In AUD
Less than one year

2016

2015

415,408

270,842

Between one and five years

2,578,662

161,394

Over five years

2,433,382

-

5,427,452

432,236

The Company has an operating lease relating to office premises. The original lease runs for a period of 5 years from 1st August 2007.
The lease was renewed for a period of 5 years from 1st August 2012. During the year, the Company signed a new lease agreement for a
period of 10 years commencing 16th June 2017.

/78

AIST Annual Report 2016

2016 financial statement
In AUD

2016

2015

Less than one year

13,692

16,764

Between one and five years

54,205

42,943

67,897

59,707

The Company has an operating lease relating to photocopiers. The original lease agreement was terminated and the Company entered
into a new lease agreement with a new service provider. The new lease runs for a period of 5 years from 16th December 2016.

22. Auditors’ remuneration
In AUD

2016

2015

KPMG Australia

28,000

27,000

Consulting services for Digital Roadmap engagement

45,455

-

Process and Risk Management Services

34,866

38,353

108,321

65,353

AUDIT SERVICES
Auditors of the Company

Total Auditor’s Remuneration

23. Capital and operational reserve
This reserve is to fund future exceptional capital and operational expenditure including one-off projects that advance the Institutes’
principal activities, development of new programs and the required staff training to deliver it.

24. Contingencies
There are no known contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2016.

25. Related parties
(i). Transactions with key management personnel
During the period, the Company provided membership, conference and other educational services to the Trustee Directors or
Management Personnel of the relevant Superannuation Funds of Directors. These services were provided on normal commercial
terms and conditions.
Gerard Noonan is a director of the Australian Council of Superannuation Investors (ACSI). ACSI reimbursed AIST for property services
during the year on a cost recovery basis. AIST provided administration support on a cost recovery basis to Women in Super (WIS).
Catherine Wood is a director of WIS.
The directors of the Company do not receive any remuneration for the performance of their duties as Directors.

AIST Annual Report 2016

/79

2016 financial statement
(ii) Key Management Personnel
The names of the directors and personnel that are key management personnel during the period are as follows:
Name

Position

David Smith

Trustee Representative Director – President (appointed 14/04/2016)
Trustee Representative Director – Deputy President (01/01/2016 to 13/04/2016)
Trustee Representative Director (24/03/2014 to date of this report)

Louise du Pre-Alba

Staff Representative Director – Deputy President (appointed 14/04/2016)
Staff Representative Director (18/03/2015 to date of this report)

Angela Emslie

Trustee Representative Director – President (resigned 17/03/2016)

Catherine Wood

Trustee Representative Director – (resigned 17/03/2016)

Gerard Noonan

Trustee Representative Director

Michael O’Connor

Trustee Representative Director

Graeme Arnott

Board Appointed Director (appointed 13/12/2016)
Staff Representative Director (15/11/2013 to 12/12/2016)

Stephen Pratt

Staff Representative Director (resigned 28/01/2016)

Geoffrey Lake

Trustee Representative Director

Naomi Edwards

Board Appointed Director

Deborah Blakey

Board Appointed Director

Mark Puli

Staff Representative Director

Catherine Bolger

Trustee Representative Director

Craig Peate

Trustee Representative Director

Tom Garcia

Chief Executive Officer

Maryann Mannix-White

Executive Manager Business & Operations Services

Janet de Silva

Executive Manager Media & Communications

David Haynes

Executive Manager Policy & Regulatory

Eva Scheerlinck

Executive Manager Governance & Stewardship

Tanya Tran

Executive Manager Finance & Analytics

Theresa Hoogland

Executive Manager Marketing & Strategy

Sharon Bierens

Executive Manager People & Culture

(iii) Key Management Personnel
In AUD

2016

2015

1,039,361

1,071,628

Post-employment benefits

121,793

118,037

Other long term benefits

120,574

124,915

1,281,728

1,314,580

Short-term employee benefits

26. Subsequent events
There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any other item, transaction or
event of a material and unusual nature likely to affect significantly the operations of the Company, the results of those operations, or
the state of affairs of the Company in subsequent financial years.
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Directors’ Declaration
In the opinion of the Directors of Australia Institute of Superannuation Trustees the Company:
(a) the Company is not publicly accountable;
(b) the, financial statements and notes that are set out on pages 56 to 80 are in accordance with the Australian Charities and Not-for-		
profits Commission Act 2012, including:
(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31 December 2016 and of its performance, for the financial year
		 ended on that date; and
(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2012 ; and
(c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.
Dated at Melbourne this 13th of February 2017.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors:

Director

Director
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